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1. Introduction to the Annual Report
From the Chairman and Chief Executive

This Annual Report is being written at a time when the NHS is undergoing one of the most
significant periods of change in its history. The developments being introduced with the
Health and Social Care Act, the significant savings which the NHS is expected to deliver and
the challenging national economic picture all present a real challenge to the NHS and Yeovil
District Hospital. However, these changes also present opportunities and we are confident
that with the track record of success at Yeovil District Hospital (YDH) we will be able to meet
these challenges and exploit the opportunities to improve further the quality of services we
provide.
Looking back on the past year it is a credit to the organisation that we have managed to
achieve all of our performance standards, delivered our financial plans and enabled the
continued improvement in the quality of our services.
Over the past twelve months we have continued to make progress on delivering our Clinical
Service Strategy and highlights of note for 2011-12 were:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Maintaining good performance against national waiting time targets
Extremely positive feedback from external reviewers of how we provide care for
dementia patients
Commencing the provision of outpatient and diagnostic services at the new South
Petherton Hospital
Reducing the incidence of hospital acquired infections
Improving our performance against national targets for stroke services
Reducing our hospital standardised mortality rates
Investing in additional consultant medical staff in our Emergency Department, Cancer
Unit and within Gastroenterology
Completing the refurbishment of our Macmillan Cancer Unit
Making good progress in our Flying Colours Appeal which has enabled the
refurbishment programme for the Women’s Hospital to begin improving the facilities
for our patients
Beginning a partnership with Taunton and an independent provider to deliver a new
pathology service for Somerset

Highlights relating to our Estates Strategy last year were:
•
•

Making progress in reducing our carbon footprint through the development of a
combined heat and power unit for the hospital
Beginning the building of modern accommodation for our staff which will be
available in the summer of 2012

YDH’s Governors and Board of Directors have set out a clear vision for our future direction;
to become the new model of how a rural district general hospital can excel at serving its local
community. This will see us moving from solely providing traditional hospital based services
to working with our partners such as GPs, Community Services and Social Care to deliver a
wide range of health and social care services within a more joined up system.
Integrating services to provide seamless care for patients and their families will ensure that
people receive the right treatment at the right time and in the right place. It will also ensure
that we make best use of our collective resources within the local NHS and social care
organisations and deliver efficiencies for all of these partners.
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Looking to the future we have an exciting opportunity to develop our approach to integrated
care with our plans to develop a Health Campus on land adjacent to the hospital. This
provides the potential for us to deliver a wide variety of integrated health and social care
services with a range of partners which will significantly improve the services we provide for
patients.
Underpinning our clinical services will be the need to maximise developments in technology
and new ways of working which will also support our drive to be more efficient. We are
planning to invest in our Information Technology systems to enable clinicians to have fast
access to high quality patient information at the point of care. This will reduce unnecessary
paperwork and ensure that important information is available to all clinicians involved in
looking after a patient.
Our Quality Strategy sets out the work we are doing to ensure the safety and quality of
services we provide continues to improve, with a major focus on improving the experience of
patients using our services. Given the increasing number of older people we will continue to
have a particular focus on their needs, including dementia services.
The economic challenge for YDH has been to continue to deliver and improve the high
standard of services at the hospital in a difficult economic climate where we have had to
deliver £5 million of efficiencies. Through the dedication, innovation and involvement of our
staff we have managed to deliver these savings in the past twelve months and looking
forward to 2012-13 and beyond we will need to continue to deliver this level of efficiencies
through a significant programme of transformational change across the organisation. This
work is already underway and it is encouraging that a number of frontline staff have become
involved in leading projects.
Our staff are our greatest asset and they are what make Yeovil District Hospital a high
performing organisation. The Board of Directors greatly appreciate the hard work and
dedication of all of our staff and would like to take this opportunity to thank each and every
one of them for the part they have played in delivering high quality services to our patients.
With the continued enthusiasm, commitment and loyalty of our staff, volunteers, governors
and members we are confident that Yeovil District Hospital will adapt and thrive, continuing
to provide the best possible service to the local population.

Peter Wyman
Chairman

Paul Mears
Chief Executive
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2. Directors’ Report
BUSINESS REVIEW
What we do
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (YDH) was established as an NHS Foundation
Trust on 1 June 2006 under the Health & Social Care (Community Health & Standards) Act
2003. It took over the responsibilities, staff and facilities of the previous organisation, East
Somerset NHS Trust.
The hospital opened in 1973 and has 345 beds. It provides outpatient and inpatient
consultant services for a range of specialties, including: general medicine, cardiology,
gastroenterology, general surgery, urology, oral surgery, orthopaedic surgery and trauma,
obstetrics and gynaecology, ear, nose and throat (ENT), specialist coronary care, stroke,
paediatrics and care of the elderly. Clinics are held for chest diseases, dermatology, family
planning, rheumatology, ophthalmology, orthodontics, oncology and staff occupational
health.
The Emergency Department is supported by an intensive therapy unit and radiology
department, which includes CT scanning facilities and an MRI scanner. YDH also provides
physiotherapy, occupational therapy services, and a full pathology service, all of which have
open access for GPs. It also has a respiratory function laboratory, an echocardiology
service and a bone densitometry service.
YDH also has a Special Care Baby Unit (SCBU) which has facilities to care for up to eight
babies. Babies from 32 weeks - 37 weeks gestation are routinely admitted but other babies
requiring extra special care are also cared for.
YDH provides outpatient and diagnostic services in a number of community hospitals in the
surrounding area, including South Petherton, the Yeatman Hospital in Sherborne, Wincanton
Community Hospital, Crewkerne Hospital, Chard Hospital and West Mendip Hospital.
YDH has a private patients’ facility, the Kingston Wing, which offers 14 single en-suite
rooms.
During 2011-12 YDH maintained its registration as a healthcare provider under the Care
Quality Commission’s new registration scheme. It was registered without conditions and is
licensed to provide healthcare activities at Yeovil District Hospital and the Yeatman Hospital
in Sherborne, Dorset.
Our values
Providing high quality clinical care and an excellent patient experience are our top priorities.
We are proud of our iCARE principles, initially developed by our nursing staff, and now in
which all our staff are trained.
i Treating our patients and staff as individuals
C Effective Communication
A Positive Attitude
R Respect for patients, carers and staff
E Environment conducive to care and recovery
Our iCARE principles are at the heart of how we deliver care to our patients.
4

The environment
The NHS is changing. The Government’s Health and Social Care Act sets out a clear
change in direction for the NHS. Although the underlying principle of healthcare funded
through general taxation remains the same, the mechanisms for delivery of services are
changing, with GPs and other primary care professionals much more in the driving seat. In
addition, we also know that the economic prospects over the next few years are challenging
with the NHS being required to manage the pressures of growing demand, changes in
technology, inflation etc. within minimal funding growth.
However, in times of great change there are also great opportunities and YDH is confident
that it can build on the successes achieved over many years, adapt to this changing
environment and secure our future as a strongly independent provider of high quality health
services to local people.
Why do we need to change?
The Health and Social Care Act will create a landscape characterised by greater competition
between providers of health services with much more involvement of the private sector and
potentially new types of organisations including social enterprises and mutual organisations.
Patients will also be given greater opportunity to choose providers informed by a wider
availability of comparative data and patients’ own views about the care they’ve received. In
support of this there will be increased transparency about clinical outcomes, quality and
patient experience.
One of the key aims of the reforms is to deliver an NHS which is clinically led and
managerially supported. To reflect this we will see the abolition of SHAs, with PCTs
replaced by groups of GPs and other primary care professionals who will be responsible for
commissioning services from a wide range of potential providers. There will be less
‘systems management’ with the ‘shape’ of the NHS being determined by the commissioning
choices of the new clinical commissioning groups and competition between providers.
As well as these changes we can also expect that demand for services and public
expectations will continue to rise. We know that the economic constraints on public funding
are likely to be a significant and continuing feature, not only with less investment for public
services, but also with the social impact of this austerity on the health and wellbeing of the
population.
The major threats to YDH relate to the scale of the financial challenge and the pace at which
the structural changes will come into effect. Greater competition from existing NHS and
private sector organisations, but also from new ones, could result in a loss of income and in
a time of limited resource we need to ensure we remain the provider of choice.
However, there are significant opportunities for us to strengthen and consolidate our position
as the principal provider of acute care locally, and also to extend our reach and develop as a
key provider within a joined-up or integrated system of healthcare where organisational
boundaries become less important. We need to be nimble and adapt quickly, keep a firm
grip on our finances, build on our existing partnerships and create new ones.
Where are we now?
Despite the challenges ahead Yeovil District Hospital is well placed to meet them and take
advantage of the opportunities presented. Our major strengths as a hospital include the
commitment and loyalty of our workforce whose strong caring ethos is embodied in our
iCARE philosophy. Getting it right on a personal level will be fundamental to being the
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hospital of choice for local people and their GPs. As a Foundation Trust we also enjoy
considerable support from the local community particularly from our membership and elected
Governors. Increasingly we need to find new ways of engaging our community in shaping
the future of their hospital.
As well as these strengths we also have a good track record of delivery and sound financial
performance. In recent years we have made good progress with our clinical services
strategy, originally developed in 2008, and have strengthened some core acute services
within the hospital. The care we provide is of a high quality and feedback from our patients
is positive. We have also made real progress in terms of improving our patients’ experience
and safety. We are a recognised centre of excellence for research and development.
Nevertheless we know that there are some aspects of our clinical services that could be
improved and strengthened. It is vital that all of the services we deliver are of the highest
standard, appropriate for a hospital like ours and are clinically sustainable, efficient and safe.
We also know that parts of our infrastructure, particularly our information systems and the
hospital buildings, do not always reflect the quality of our services or our ambitions to
improve them.
Although YDH is financially sound we all need to take greater care of how we use our money
to be sure that we remain financially viable in the longer term. We know that in many areas
we provide services efficiently, but we also know that there is room for improvement in
others. There are also opportunities to change our ways of working to raise quality and
increase productivity to ensure we deliver better services within planned resources, for
example by avoiding the use of temporary capacity which is expensive and not always the
best for patients and staff.
As a hospital we have sought to develop partnerships with neighbouring providers but it is
clear that to be successful in the future we need to develop a wider range of alliances, which
may include commercial partners.
Where do we need to be?
To continue to thrive in the new environment, YDH needs to change. The traditional model
for a small district general hospital (DGH) will become increasingly difficult to sustain as
referrals reduce, and new services are put in place in the community to divert work from
expensive acute hospitals. We need to adapt, to broaden the range of services we provide,
to continually improve the quality and reduce the cost of our services, and to identify new
sources of income.
The Board of Governors, Board of Directors and Hospital Management Team have therefore
set out an ambitious vision that:

YDH should become the new model of how a rural DGH
can excel at serving its local community
We call this moving from hospital to healthcare – no longer seeing ourselves as simply a
hospital, but as working with our partners to provide a wider range of health services within a
much more joined-up system of care (often called integrated care).
Our aim is not simply to survive but to thrive and to do this YDH needs to maintain a secure,
high quality emergency service for the local population. This will be complemented by a
wider range of other services which offer convenience and quality to local people, attract and

6

retain the highest calibre staff, and offer additional income to support our core services. The
new model therefore has two components:
YDH – The General Hospital
• A strong emergency service run by YDH
• A general medical & surgical service, including complementary elective services
• A small number of exemplar specialisms
YDH – The Integrated Care Provider: extending YDH’s role as a key partner in
providing joined-up (integrated) services designed around patient needs
• Developing new integrated pathways of care with our partner organisations
• Hosting a broader range of integrated services provided by ourselves and partners:
NHS, private, voluntary sector
• Working across pathways and the community, not just in hospital
• Providing care from a range of convenient locations
• Extending our geographical reach
• Helping people to stay well.
How are we going to get there?
In order to deliver this new model, the Board of Directors has identified six strategic areas of
focus, each of which is supported by a strategy which sets out the approach to developing
our strengths in these areas:
1. Quality: Personal, high quality and safe care
At the heart of everything we do is the provision of the best possible care, with patients
treated as individuals by dedicated, skilled staff. We also need to be able to demonstrate
that we provide high quality care by collecting more feedback from patients, and more
information about the quality of our services.
The Quality Strategy 2011-2014 sets out YDH’s aim to achieve the lowest Hospital
Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR) of a small DGH, to be known for listening to patient
feedback, and to be the best small hospital for incident reporting.
2. Clinical Services: Strong, sustainable services, meeting local needs
We will focus our expertise and resources on strong acute core services, and work with
partners to develop a clinically and financially sustainable range of other hospital and
community services which meet local needs.
YDH has reviewed its original 2008 Clinical Services Strategy as part of implementing the
new model of services described above. This includes identifying which services are core,
and developing integrated service models by working with partners to deliver a wider range
of more joined-up services.
Our services have traditionally been centred on the hospital but, to improve the quality of
services for our patients and make their experience as simple and straightforward as
possible, we need to ensure our services are better co-ordinated with those provided by
other organisations, such as GPs and community services.
We are working with our partners to develop a new Health Campus on land opposite the
main hospital entrance which becomes vacant in the summer of 2012 following the
relocation of our staff accommodation, which is moving off site. The Health Campus provides
a unique opportunity to develop new, joined-up services in new facilities which will be
developed on this land.
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We are also looking to develop similar models of more integrated care on other sites, such
as South Petherton, and the Yeatman Hospital in Sherborne.
3. Workforce: Valuing our staff as our greatest strength
We will make sure YDH is a great place to work, with strong clinical leadership, where staff
feel involved and valued, so we can attract and retain the best staff.
The key priorities are to introduce a much more systematic approach to workforce planning,
to ensure the most effective use of the Trust’s pay budget, and to continue developing a
culture of strong leadership and devolved responsibility.
4. Partnerships: A valued partner in the local health service
We will be a stable, influential partner, helping to shape the local health service and working
together to provide better services for patients.
YDH is committed to building constructive relationships with the new GP Federations, and
the Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group. We are also exploring areas where we could
work more with our neighbours, including Taunton and Somerset, Dorchester and the Royal
Devon and Exeter hospitals.
5. Finance and Commercial Focus: Managing our money wisely
Because of the current economic climate, and the increasing demands on the NHS, YDH
must deliver year on year savings of £4.5M to £5.5M over the next three years. We will
constantly focus on finding new ways to improve quality and efficiency, which enable us to
continue to deliver our vision in a changing financial climate. We will develop new incomegenerating services which do not increase the overall cost to the NHS, or are from new
sources outside the NHS, to support our core NHS services. Examples of successful
initiatives so far include the provision of community pharmacy services across a wider
geographic area, and working with Taunton and Somerset NHS Foundation Trust to form a
joint venture with a private partner to provide pathology services across Somerset.
6. Infrastructure: Infrastructure that supports delivery
We will invest in our information systems to support the redesign of care delivery and
improve quality and safety. We will maintain the basics in terms of our equipment and
buildings, exploring new ways of generating inward investment.
The overall aim of the IT Strategy is to enable clinicians to have access to high quality,
patient focused information at the point of care. The key components include the
development of a clinical portal which lets clinical staff access all information about a patient
held in the hospital’s various clinical systems through a single portal, electronic ordering of
pathology and radiology tests, introduction of mobile devices, and replacement of ageing
hospital systems (PAS, maternity, prescribing).
Key projects within the Estates Strategy include the development of the Health Campus,
new doctors’ residences, a new nursery, the refurbishment of the Women’s Hospital and
much improved car parking.
Transformation: hospital to healthcare
To deliver this ambitious agenda, YDH has launched a new programme to enable us to
achieve our vision of moving from hospital to healthcare – to change the way services are
delivered to enhance the patient experience, and improve the efficiency of our services.
The key areas we are looking at are:
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•
•
•
•
•
•

Reviewing clinical pathways both within YDH and with our partners as part of a more
joined-up system of care;
Becoming an integral part of the community through the provision of services at
community hospitals such as South Petherton and the Yeatman Hospital in
Sherborne;
Transforming how we work to support an integrated care pathway;
Investing in IT to maximise the efficiency of our services;
Growing our commercial capability to enable us to move into new markets
Ensuring we are getting best value for our goods and services through effective
procurement processes.

REVIEW OF THE YEAR
2011-12 was a very positive year for YDH. We ended the year once again achieving all of
the key quality and performance targets which are required of foundation trusts by our
regulator, Monitor, and with a £1million surplus to reinvest in our services and buildings.
This puts us in a very strong position to face the economic challenges ahead.
Quality: Personal, high quality and safe care
During the year we made excellent progress in implementing our quality strategy. We made
a significant reduction in the incidence of infections in the Trust, such as MRSA and
Clostridium difficile. We halved the number of C difficile cases during the year, compared to
the year before, and we also achieved the longest ever period without a single case of
MRSA (15 months).
YDH made a significant reduction in its Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio. This is a
nationally recognised measure of mortality in hospital. During the year our HSMR has
reduced significantly as we have addressed issues with incomplete recording of data, and
the way patients’ movements around the hospital are recorded. Regular audits of medical
records are undertaken to ensure the quality of care is maintained and these have
demonstrated consistently high standards.
The hospital was inspected by the Care Quality Commission during the year, as part of its
rolling programme of visiting all Trusts. Their report praised the standard of care at the
hospital and the commitment of staff, and found no major issues to be addressed.
We also took part in a peer review of dementia services at the hospital, where again the
feedback from the external assessors was extremely positive.
More details on these and other aspects of quality can be found in the Quality Report, later
in this document.
Clinical Services: Strong, sustainable services, meeting local needs
The major development during the year was the commencement of outpatient and
diagnostic services at the new South Petherton Hospital. The hospital is run by Somerset
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, and Yeovil Hospital provides consultant cover for the
new stroke unit, a range of outpatient services, x-ray and ultrasound. We have been a key
partner in ensuring that residents in that area now have a more convenient location to
receive a wide range of services.
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Services provided at South Petherton Hospital by YDH include regular orthopaedic clinics
which run alongside the primary care-led orthopaedics assessment services to which all
patients are initially referred. If patients need an x-ray or to see a consultant, then in many
cases they are able to do so on the same day. This greatly reduces the number of visits
required and the waiting time for patients. The Trust has now started to provide preassessment clinics as well, allowing some patients to avoid a further visit to the main
hospital.
Other YDH-provided services there include diabetes, general surgery, gastroenterology,
general medicine, dermatology, paediatrics, sleep services and audiology, as well as x-ray
and ultrasound. Over the coming year capacity will be increased so that more patients who
live nearer South Petherton than other hospitals can access services more conveniently.
We continued to invest in improving services within YDH itself, funding additional consultants
in the Emergency Department, in gastroenterology, and in general surgery. These
appointments will ensure that the hospital continues to be able to provide a high quality,
timely service to patients. A further expansion of medical and nursing staffing within the
emergency department has now been agreed to deal with the ever increasing demand.
We maintained last year’s good performance against national waiting time targets, achieving
all key targets for patients with suspected cancer, patients waiting for planned surgery and
waiting times in the emergency department. Improvements were made to our performance
against the national targets for stroke services, such as patients spending 90% of their time
in hospital on the stroke ward, but this still requires more work to ensure their consistent
achievement.
Workforce: Valuing our staff as our greatest strength
We are fortunate to have a highly committed and professional workforce. In the national
staff survey Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust once again came out in the top
20% of trusts for overall staff satisfaction. The hospital also scored in the top 20% for its
staff engagement and motivation and in the highest category for the number of staff
recommending the hospital as a place to work.
Also among the very top scoring trusts was the response by our staff that Yeovil as an
employer took effective action towards violence and harassment. 81% of staff also said that
hand washing materials are always available and 94% of staff said they were satisfied with
the quality of work and patient care they deliver.
Partnerships: A valued partner in the local health service
Building strong partnerships with other local organisations providing health services is a key
aspect of our strategy. During the year we have worked with the Somerset Partnership Trust
to develop a vision of more integrated services which are designed around the patient rather
than the organisation. This work is in preparation for the development of the service models
for the Health Campus which is being planned for land opposite the hospital entrance that
will become vacant next year.
We have also been building stronger links with the new federation of GPs based in South
Somerset, and the countywide GP-led Clinical Commissioning Consortium which is taking on
the role of commissioning services from the hospital from Somerset PCT.
In the private sector, we successfully bid with Boots to provide pharmacy services to 25
community sites in Dorset, including community hospitals, mental health units and prisons.
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We developed an innovative service model which made the best use of the hospital
pharmacy team’s skills and the network of Boots branches throughout the area. Feedback
about the new service has been excellent.
YDH also set up a joint venture with Taunton and Somerset NHS Foundation Trust and a
private company, iPP, to provide pathology services across the county from a new laboratory
in Taunton. Its position close to the M5 means that there is great potential to provide these
services to other areas in the South West.
Finance and Commercial Focus: Managing our money wisely
YDH achieved a surplus of £1m, which was our target for the year. This surplus enables us
to continue to invest in our services, and means that once again we have not had to borrow
to fund developments.
We made good progress in developing our commercial strategy to enable us to compete
with the increasing private sector involvement in the provision of health services. The
pathology and pharmacy developments described above were two major steps forward in
bringing this strategy to fruition.
Infrastructure: Infrastructure that supports delivery
During the year the refurbished Macmillan Unit opened. This provides a much more
appropriate environment for the care of patients with cancer and has been well received by
patients and staff.
The new Sterile Services Unit has been very successful, providing us and other local
organisations with a reliable and high quality cleaning and sterilisation service for medical
equipment.
The first step in the refurbishment of the Women’s Health and Maternity Unit (formerly the
Women’s Hospital) was taken, with the completion of the new entrance, reception area and
café. Further improvements planned in the near future include the provision of a birthing
pool, the refurbishment of the outpatient area and delivery suites, and an expanded Special
Care Baby Unit.
DISCLOSURES
No market values of any fixed assets are significantly different from the values at which
these assets are held in the NHS Foundation Trust’s financial statements.
No political or charitable donations have been made by YDH.
There are no important events since the end of the financial year that have affected YDH.
There have been no significant activities in the field of research and development. Fuller
details of YDH’s activities in research and development are set out in the Quality Report
below.
YDH has no branches outside the United Kingdom.
YDH has an active equality and diversity group comprising members of the public, governors
and staff. The role of the group is to set the direction for equality and diversity priorities both
for patients and for staff. It has a comprehensive remit which also covers disability issues
and is intended to allow a holistic approach to diversity. The group also incorporates YDH’s
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work on our iCARE initiative, which pervades the organisation and engenders positive
attitudes towards all equality and diversity issues. The group reports progress annually to the
Board of Directors including the level of statistical evidence required in order for YDH to fulfil
its legal obligations. This includes staff access to employment and training opportunities.
The awareness of staff relating to of all equality and diversity issues is addressed through
the induction process.
YDH communicates with its staff in a number of ways: through staff newsletters, electronic
and face-to-face communications. The Chief Executive has continued to hold regular staff
briefings which are open for all to attend.
The Chairman, Chief Executive and Directors regularly walk around the hospital to meet staff
and hear their views, and conduct regular patient safety visits to wards and other clinical
areas. The Directors also attend other key staff meetings to ensure staff are aware of YDH’s
aims and objectives and to seek input from staff on how we can be more efficient and
contribute to the development of services. Induction sessions include a personal welcome
from the Chief Executive.
YDH has a highly valued Joint Consultative & Negotiating Committee (JCNC) which has met
regularly throughout the year and acts as an important means of addressing and resolving
matters of concern to employees. In addition several workshops involving a range of staff,
directors and governors have been held to develop the strategic direction and to respond to
the likely challenges of the Health and Social Care Bill. Combined with the regular
communications channels this has enabled good two-way communication and discussion on
important matters.
The regular briefings and workshops mentioned above have been used to help staff
understand YDH’s performance, discuss ways to improve this and generate ideas for further
efficiencies.
In the same way, these opportunities have been used to explain the financial challenges, set
out the Board’s thinking on these issues and engage in dialogue with staff. The significant
change in the management structure to create three clinically-led divisions which took place
in 2010-11 also empowers staff to respond to these challenges more easily and flexibly
within their own areas of influence.
YDH’s financial risk management is carried out within the parameters defined in the
Treasury Management Guidance, agreed by the Audit Committee. YDH’s Treasury activity
is routinely reported and is subject to review by internal and external auditors.
YDH’s financial instruments comprise cash and liquid resources and various items such as
trade debtors and creditors that arise directly from its operations. We do not undertake
speculative treasury transactions.
Price Risk: YDH invests its surplus cash in money market funds and deposits; therefore it is
not subject to market price risk.
Credit Risk: YDH is not exposed to high levels of credit risk as the majority of our income
comes from Government bodies or other NHS organisations under contractual
arrangements.
Other income is subject to credit control procedures which are regularly reviewed by
management. Outstanding debtors are referred to a debt collection agency once YDH has
exhausted all other methods of collection.
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Liquidity Risk: Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust’s net operating costs are
incurred in the provision of services under contracts with NHS commissioners, which are
financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. YDH is not, therefore, exposed to
significant liquidity risks.
Cash flow Risk: Cash is invested in accordance with approved procedures. Cash flows are
monitored and monthly forecasts are produced to ensure that commitments are met.
Under the national Better Payment Practice Code YDH aims to pay non-NHS invoices within
30 days of receipt.

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid
in year
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid
within target
Percentage of Non-NHS trade
invoices paid within target
Total NHS trade invoices paid in
year
Total NHS trade invoices paid within
target
Percentage of NHS trade invoices
paid within target

2011-12
Number

2011-12
£000

2010-11
Number

2010-11
£000

32,587

28,311

31,616

30,716

31,982

27,802

29,991

26,988

98%

98%

95%

88%

1,521

9,986

1,704

12,812

1,493

9,861

1,617

12,440

98%

99%

95%

97%

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
YDH’s income during 2011-12 was £109 million, the majority of which was generated for the
treatment of our patients. We have contracts for providing healthcare with NHS Somerset
and NHS Dorset, who commission services on behalf of Somerset and Dorset patients.
We generated a surplus of £1 million before technical accounting adjustments in 2011-12
which was in line with the stretch plan that we set ourselves for the year. The surplus will be
used by to improve the hospital buildings. We are not expecting any significant changes to
our income levels in 2012-13.
Summary Statement of Comprehensive Income 2011-12

Income from activities
Other operating income
Total Operating Income
Pay Expenses
Non Pay Expenses
Total operating expenses
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)
EBIDTA (%)
Interest receivable
Depreciation, Impairment, Loss on disposal of assets and Interest Costs
RETAINED SURPLUS FOR YEAR
RETAINED SURPLUS FOR YEAR (for Monitor Financial Risk Rating)
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2011-12
£m
98.0
11.1
109.1
69.9
32.6
102.5
6.6
5.5%
0.1
5.7
0.8
1.0

How are our finances rated
YDH achieved a financial risk rating of 3 in 2011-12 by our external regulator Monitor.
What we spent our money on
During 2011-12 additional investment was made in Cancer Services, Emergency services
and nursing staff which will improve the patient experience. Our pay costs were £70 million
in 2011-12 and the make-up of this expenditure can be seen below:

In order to prepare for the financial challenges we are facing in the NHS a strong focus has
been given to removing waste and improving the efficiency of our services. A total of £4.7
million of planned cost improvement programmes were delivered in 2011-12. The majority of
savings were achieved by improving the efficiency of services so that high cost temporary
capacity could be removed and also making efficiencies to the emergency care pathway
reducing the need to increase capacity in the winter months. Further work is underway to
continue delivering even more efficiencies in 2012-13, with a planned cost improvement
programme of £4.6 million.
The major improvements will include improving the utilisation of hospital capacity by
reviewing the patient pathway through the hospital, reducing the number of temporary staff
used in the hospital, reducing the hospital’s overheads and getting better value for money
through the procurement of supplies. These schemes will not only ensure an increase in
efficiency but also an increase in the quality of services. There is a financial risk if we fail to
deliver these efficiencies so progress is being closely monitored.
During 2011-12 we invested £4.0 million in capital expenditure. A significant amount of this
investment was to continue with a planned programme of backlog maintenance which has
seen the electrical infrastructure within the hospital updated and continued investment in
medical equipment of £0.9 million. The Macmillan Cancer unit has been refurbished and
increased in size and we have invested in a combined heat and power unit enabling savings
to be made in the energy costs as the unit produces energy. We are planning to spend a
total of £3.9 million on capital expenditure in 2012-13 to allow the purchase of a new
computerised tomography (CT) scanner in radiology, to update our information technology
and continue with the programme of backlog maintenance work.
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Summary Statement of Financial Position
2011-12
£m
53.14
11.51
(7.86)
56.79
(0.96)
55.83
55.83

Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Total Assets less Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Total Assets Employed
Total Taxpayers Equity

YDH has a good cash position, with the number of liquidity days at 24 at year-end. The
closing cash balance for the year was £6.1 million which is to allow the continued investment
in the hospital buildings.
Summary Cash flow Statement

EBITDA
Decrease in working capital
Decrease in provisions
Purchase of non-current assets
Loan repayment
PDC Dividend paid
PDC Capital received
Interest receivable
Increase in cash in the year
Cash as at 1 April 2011
Cash as at 31 March 2012

2011-12
£m
6.51
0.20
0.08
(3.94)
(0.13)
(1.75)
0.03
0.07
1.07
5.05
6.12

Management costs
Management costs were calculated in accordance with the Department of Health’s definition.
For 2011-12 the total costs were £4.8 million, representing 4.37% of total income. These are
similar to other acute NHS foundation trusts of a comparable size.
Statement as to Disclosure to Auditors
The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts
for each financial year. The Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts, Monitor, with
the approval of the Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the
Foundation Trust’s gains and losses, cash flows and financial state at the end of the financial
year.
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant information of which the Trust’s
auditors are unaware. The directors have taken all steps that ought to have been taken as a
director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant information and to establish that
the Trust’s auditors are aware of that information.

15

Going Concern
After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that Yeovil District
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the accounts.
Directors’ Interests
A Register of Interests for the Board of Directors is kept by the Trust and is reviewed at least
annually. This Register of Interests is available, on request, from the Company Secretary.

3. Remuneration Report
Remuneration and Pensions
Salary and Pension entitlements of senior managers
Remuneration
Name and Title

Year Ended 31 March 2012
Other
Golden hello /
Remuneration
compensation
for loss of
office
(bands of
(bands of
£5,000)
£5,000)

Benefits in kind

Total

2010/11
Total

(Rounded to the
nearest £100)

(bands of
£5,000)

(bands of
£5,000)

£000

£

£000

£000

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

5-10
30-35
10-15
10-15
10-15
10-15
10-15

35-40
0
10-15
10-15
10-15
10-15
5-10

0
0
0
0
130-135
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

130-135
95-100
0-5
80-85
165-170
75-80
80-85
80-85
75-80

130-135
95-100
0
55-60
90-95
75-80
55-60
80-85
70-75

Salary

Performance
related bonuses

(bands of
£5,000)

(bands of
£5,000)

£000

£000

£000

5-10
30-35
10-15
10-15
10-15
10-15
10-15

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

130-135
95-100
0-5
80-85
35-40
75-80
80-85
80-85
75-80

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2011/12
A Dupont
P Wyman
A Ellingworth
A Russell
G Waldron
J Buckley
J Grazebrook

Chairman
Chairman
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

G Boyle
E Walters
P Moger
S Jones
Dr LJ Howes
J Higman
J Martin
A Rayner
R Steele

Chief Executive
Director of Finance
Interim Director of Finance
Director of Nursing and Clinical Governance
Medical Director
Director of Operations
Director of Strategy
Director of Human Resources
Director of Facilities

A Dupont left the Trust on 31 May 2011
P Wyman was appointed on 1 June 2011
G Boyle left the Trust on 25 March 2012
E Walters was appointed as Interim Chief Executive on 26 March 2012
P Moger was appointed as Interim Director of Finance on 26 March 2012
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YEOVIL DISTRICT HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2011/2012
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Salary and Pension entitlements of senior managers (continued)
Pension Benefits
Name and Title

G Boyle
E Walters
P Moger
S Jones
Dr L J Howes
J Higman
J Martin
A Rayner
R Steele

Chief Executive
Director of Finance / Interim Chief Executive
Interim Director of Finance
Director of Nursing and Clinical Governance
Medical Director
Director of Operations
Director of Strategy
Director of Human Resources
Director of Facilities

Real increase
in pension at
age 60
(bands
£2,500) for
time in office

Real increase
in pension
related sum
at age 60
(bands
£2,500) for
time in office

Total accrued
pension at
age 60 at 31
March 2012
(bands of
£2,500)

Total accrued
pension
related lump
sum at age 60
at 31 March
2012
(bands of
£2,500)

Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value at 31
March 2011

Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value at 31
March 2012

Real Increase
in Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value for time
in office

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5
2.5 - 5
0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5

5 - 7.5
0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5
10 - 12.5
2.5 - 5
0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5
2.5 - 5

32.5 - 35
20 - 22.5
10 - 12.5
30 - 32.5
37.5 - 40
15 - 17.5
17.5 - 20
22.5 - 25
32.5 - 35

97.5 - 100
62.5 - 65
32.5 - 35
92.5 - 95
117.5 - 120
47.5 - 50
55 - 57.5
70 - 72.5
97.5 - 100

408
207
103
447
497
168
222
296
607

523
282
148
525
642
229
278
365
679

101
68
1
64
130
55
49
60
53

As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members.
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accumulated by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the
member's accumulated benefits and any contingent spous
Real increase / (decrease) in CETV - This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accumulated pension due to inflation, contributions paid by
the employee (including the value of any benefits

The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in Yeovil District Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust in the financial year 2011-12 was £165,000 to £170,000 (2010-11
£130,000 to £135,000). This was 6.09 times (2010-11 4.91 times) the median remuneration
of the workforce which was £27,497 (2010-11 £26,995)
In 2011-12 four employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid director (in
2010-11 the number was 14). Remuneration ranged from £171,000 to £192,000 (2010-11
£135,000 to £173,000). All employees receiving remuneration in excess of the highest paid
director are Medical Consultants. The role of the highest paid director used in calculating this
ratio is different in each of the years as there was a change in Medical Director during 201011.
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance related pay, benefits in
kind as well as severance payment. It does not include employer pension contributions and
the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.
During 2011-12 there has been a public sector pay freeze with no inflationary pay award.
Only employees on full time equivalent pay of less than £21,000 pa received a pay award of
£250 pa. Where employees were not at the top of their pay scale contractual incremental
pay increases were applied which accounts for the small increase in the median
remuneration between 2010-11 and 2011-12.
Remuneration Committee membership
The members of the Remuneration Committee are the non-executive directors of the Trust.
Attendance at the Committee’s five meetings was as follows;
Mrs Angela J Dupont (Chairman & Non-Executive Director) – attended the only meeting held
during her term of office
Mr Peter Wyman (Chairman & Non-Executive Director) – attended all four meetings during
his term of office
Mr John Buckley (Non-Executive Director) – attended all meetings
Mrs Amanda Ellingworth (Non-Executive Director) – attended four meetings
Mr Julian Grazebrook (Non-Executive Director) – attended four meetings
Mr Alexander Russell (Non-Executive Director) – attended all meetings
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Mrs Gill Waldron (Vice Chairman & Non-Executive Director) – attended four meetings
The Chief Executive and the Director of Human resources attended the Committee’s
meetings to advise as required. Harvey Nash, recruitment consultants, attended one
meeting to provide advice in connection with the appointment of a chief executive. Harvey
Nash also assisted the Board of Governors with the appointment of non-executive directors.

4. Governance
How the Boards operate
The Board of Directors exercises the functions of the Trust (YDH) as set out in the relevant
legislation and regulatory framework. It has taken the lead in developing a new strategic
framework for the Trust and has directed the operational affairs of the organisation. The
Board of Governors has discharged its statutory duties during the year and in particular has
appointed a new chairman, ratified the appointment of a new chief executive, has appointed
new non-executive directors and has reappointed external auditors. The Board of Governors
has also contributed to the development of the Trust’s strategy and has key aspects of
performance and quality through its various activities.
Composition of Board of Governors
The Board of Governors meets quarterly, with members drawn from locally elected public
members, elected staff members and appointed members from key partner organisations.
Elected governors are appointed for three year terms. Appointed members do not have a
time limit. The lead governor is Gloria Clark.
The 24 governors on the Board comprise 13 elected public governors, 5 elected staff
governors and 6 appointed partner organisation governors. The 13 public governors are
elected by foundation trust members who live in the constituencies.
YDH has six ‘constituencies’. Greater Yeovil, South Somerset (North and East) and South
Somerset (South and West) are in South Somerset while three further constituencies cover
Dorset, Mendip and the Rest of Somerset and England respectively. The public governors
for these constituencies are:
Greater Yeovil: Ann Beable, John Downing (until 31 May 2011), Martin Ormston (from 1
June 2011), Geoffrey Stroud
South Somerset (South and West): Jennie Flory (until 30 September 2011), Bill Brown (from
1 February 2012), Margaret Robathan, Dr Tony Simmonds (until 31 January 2012), Jane
Gifford (from 1 February 2012)
South Somerset (North and East): Anne Bennett, Gloria Clark, Sue McInnes
Dorset: Dr Ian Fawcett, John Park
Mendip: Hugh Campbell
Rest of Somerset and England: Caroline Morgan
The six appointed governors are nominated by the organisations they represent and are:
Dr Caroline Gamlin (NHS Somerset)
Dr Rob Childs (NHS Dorset)
Mrs Lesley Boucher (South Somerset District Council)
Cllr Anna Groskop (Somerset County Council)
Carolyn Donoghue (University of Bristol)
Janet Scammell (Bournemouth University)
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The five staff governors are: Jane Johnston, Ashley Davidson (until 31 May 2011), Derrick
Howells (from 1 June 2011), Chris Parker, Steve Wills and Helen Ryan.
During the year elections were held and appointments made as follows:
Dorset: Ian Fawcett came to the end of his term and was re-elected
South Somerset (South & West): Jennie Flory and Tony Simmonds resigned their positions
and Bill Brown and Jane Gifford were elected to succeed them.
Staff: Ashley Davidson came to the end of her term and did not stand again. Derrick
Howells was elected in her place.
Meetings & attendance
Four Board of Governors meetings were held during the year. Attendance by individual
governors was as follows;
Peter Wyman, Chairman – 4 of 4 meetings
Ann Beable, Greater Yeovil – 4 of 4 meetings
Anne Bennett, South Somerset (North and East) – 4 of 4 meetings
Lesley Boucher, South Somerset District Council – 3 of 3 meetings
Bill Brown, South Somerset (South and West) – unable to attend his first meeting
Hugh Campbell, Mendip, – 2 of 4 meetings
Rob Childs, NHS Dorset (PCT) – 2 of 4 meetings
Gloria Clark, South Somerset (North and East) – 4 of 4 meetings
Carolyn Donoghue, University of Bristol – 2 of 4 meetings
Ian Fawcett, Dorset – 2 of 4 meetings
Jennie Flory, South Somerset (South and West) – 2 of 2 meetings
Caroline Gamlin, NHS Somerset (PCT) – 3 of 4 meetings
Jane Gifford, South Somerset (South and West) – 1 of 1 meeting
Anna Groskop, Somerset County Council – 2 of 4 meetings
Derrick Howells, Staff Governor – 1 of 4 meetings
Jane Johnston, Staff Governor – 3 of 4 meetings
Sue McInnes, South Somerset (North and East) – 4 of 4 meetings
Caroline Morgan, Rest of Somerset and England – 4 of 4 meetings
Martin Ormston, Greater Yeovil – 3 of 4 meetings
John Park, Dorset – 4 of 4 meetings
Chris Parker, Staff Governor – 2 of 4 meetings
Margaret Robathan, South Somerset (South and West) – 3 of 4 meetings
Helen Ryan, Staff Governor – 4 of 4 meetings
Janet Scammell, Bournemouth University – 3 of 4 meetings
Tony Simmonds, South Somerset (South and West) – 1 of 3 meetings
Geoff Stroud, Greater Yeovil – 4 of 4 meetings
Steve Wills, Staff Governor – 3 of 4 meetings
Appointment of Chairman
The Board of Governors also held an extraordinary meeting on 1 April 2011 to consider the
appointment of a new Chairman. This was attended by 15 governors, who voted to elect
Peter Wyman as successor to Angela Dupont as from 1 June 2011.
The Board of Governors’ Nominations Committee, led by the then Vice Chairman Amanda
Ellingworth, appointed Harvey Nash to support the recruitment process. A short list of
candidates was invited to meet with focus groups, make a presentation to staff and attend a
formal interview. Peter Wyman was recommended by the Nominations Committee to the
extraordinary meeting and after full discussion the vote was in his favour.
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Governors’ interests
A Register of Interests for Governors is kept by the Trust and is reviewed at least annually
by the Board of Governors. This Register of Interests is available, on request, from the
Company Secretary.
Board of Directors
The membership of the Board of Directors during 2011-12 was as follows;
Mrs Angela J Dupont (Chairman & Non-Executive Director – until 31 May 2011)
Mr Peter Wyman (Chairman & Non-Executive Director – from 1 June 2011) Term runs until
31 May 2014
Mrs Amanda Ellingworth (Vice Chairman until 30 June 2011, Non-Executive Director and
Senior Independent Director) – term ends 31 May 2012
Mrs Gill Waldron (Vice Chairman from 1 July 2011 & Non-Executive Director) – term ends 31
May 2013
Mr Alexander Russell (Non-Executive Director) – term ends 31 May 2012
Mr Julian Grazebrook (Non-Executive Director) – term ends 31 May 2014
Mr John Buckley (Non-Executive Director) – term ends 31 May 2013
Mr Gavin Boyle (Chief Executive – to 25 March 2012)
Mrs Sue Jones (Director of Nursing & Clinical Governance)
Mrs Elisabeth (Libby) Walters (Director of Finance and Deputy Chief Executive – from 26
March 2012 Acting Chief Executive)
Dr Jonathan Howes (Medical Director)
Mrs Pippa Moger (Acting Director of Finance – from 26 March 2012)
Non-voting directors who attend Board meetings are;
Mr Jonathan Higman (Director of Operations)
Mr Jeremy Martin (Director of Strategy & Operations)
Ms Alison Rayner (Director of Human Resources)
Mr Robert Steele (Director of Estates & Facilities)
Attendance
12 Board of Directors meetings were held during the year. Attendance by individual directors
was as follows;
Angela Dupont, Chairman – 2 of 2 meetings
Peter Wyman, Chairman – 10 of 10 meetings
Gavin Boyle, Chief Executive – 12 of 12 meetings
John Buckley, Non-Executive Director – 12 of 12 meetings
Amanda Ellingworth, Non-Executive Director – 10 of 12 meetings
Julian Grazebrook, Non-Executive Director – 11 of 12 meetings
Jonathan Higman, Director of Operations – 12 of 12 meetings
Jon Howes, Medical Director – 12 of 12 meetings
Sue Jones, Director of Nursing & Clinical Governance – 12 of 12 meetings
Jeremy Martin, Director of Planning & Performance – 12 of 12 meetings
Alison Rayner, Director of Human Resources – 12 of 12 meetings
Alexander Russell, Non-Executive Director – 10 of 12 meetings
Robert Steele, Director of Estates & Facilities – 12 of 12 meetings
Gill Waldron, Non-Executive Director – 12 of 12 meetings
Elisabeth Walters, Director of Finance – 11 of 12 meetings
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Non-Executive Directors
The Non-Executive Directors are appointed by the Board of Governors, based on the
recommendations of the Board of Governors’ Nomination Committee. The terms of office for
non-executive directors (including the Chairman) can be terminated by a vote of 75% of the
members of the Board of Governors.
In 2011-12 all Non-Executive Directors were considered to be independent. During 2011-12
the Non-Executive Directors were:
Chairman, Angela Dupont: Angela was appointed by the Secretary of State for Health as
Chairman of East Somerset NHS Trust in November 1997. Angela was again appointed
Chairman when Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust was authorised to become a
NHS Foundation Trust on 1 June 2006. She has played a major role in establishing the
hospital as a top performing NHS Foundation Trust and was reappointed by the Board of
Governors until 31 May 2011 to provide continuity and stability to the Trust and to develop
the Board of Governors for which the Chairman is also responsible. Angela chose step down
from her position at the end of her term of office and the Trust is indebted to her for her
significant contribution over so many years.
Chairman, Peter Wyman: Peter joined the Trust in June 2011. He is a highly experienced
individual who has held a range of senior posts throughout his career both in the private
sector and as a Government adviser.
Peter’s skills however go beyond accountancy and, in addition to holding a number of private
sector business appointments he is currently Chairman of the Somerset Community
Foundation and is the Treasurer and a member of Council of the University of Bath. He has
been an international adviser to large commercial organisations. He was President of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales and a senior partner at
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and was awarded a CBE for services to the accountancy
profession in 2006.
Vice Chairman and Non-Executive Director, Gill Waldron: Gill served for eight years on
the former Somerset Community Health Council (three years as Vice-Chairman). Gill has
various non-executive director duties and chairs the Clinical Governance Committee. She
was appointed as Vice Chairman from 1 July 2011. Gill is Company Secretary of CGW
Consultancy Ltd and is a member of the Yeovil Committee of the NSPCC (National Society
for the Prevention of Cruelty to Children).
Non-Executive Director and Senior Independent Director, Amanda Ellingworth:
Amanda is the Trust’s Senior Independent Director, was appointed Vice-Chairman in
January 2005 and Senior Independent Director in June 2006. Amanda is a member of the
Trust’s Audit Committee, having joined Yeovil District Hospital as a non-executive director of
East Somerset NHS Trust in December 2000.
In her role of Senior Independent Director Amanda is available to governors and members if
they have concerns which they have not been able to resolve through the normal channels
of the Chairman and Chief Executive or for which such contact is inappropriate.
Amanda is also Chairman of the Guinness Partnership and a Trustee of Barnardo’s.
To contact Amanda in her capacity as Senior Independent Director please send all
correspondence, marked private and confidential, to the Company Secretary at Yeovil
District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, Higher Kingston, Yeovil BA21 4AT. Amanda was
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Vice-Chairman of the Trust until 30 June 2011. Her non-executive term ends on 31 May
2012.
Non-Executive Director, John Buckley: John has, for over 25 years, operated as Finance
Director of public quoted companies engaged primarily in the manufacture and marketing of
consumer goods. He has extensive experience of strategic planning, business
reorganisation and corporate governance in intensely competitive sectors. John is a Director
of Buckley Young Associates, a business consultancy, and of the Brewhouse Theatre and
Arts Centre. John is Chairman of the Trust’s Audit Committee. He was appointed on 1
January, 2007 and his current term runs until 31 May 2013.
Non-Executive Director, Julian Grazebrook: Julian is a chartered accountant and joined
the Board in September 2010. After completing an initial one year term Julian was appointed
by the Board of Governors for a full term. After a number of years in the City, Julian has
spent the last 20 years working with smaller entrepreneurial and owner-managed
businesses as either a part time or full time Financial Director. He has broad commercial and
financial experience in a wide variety of industries, including international trading, retail,
logistics, property, IT, telecoms and other service industries. Former roles include Managing
Director of Data Integration which specialises in the provision of IT services to both the
public sector (including health) and the private sector. He has also worked with
entrepreneurs in South America and Russia.
Non-Executive Director, Alexander Russell: Alexander’s background is in banking and
business, having developed a small family concern into a multi-national business. Previously
an Associate Director of Orion Bank Ltd, he is now a non-executive director of Sotheby’s
Europe and non-executive Deputy Chairman of Rose HoldCo Limited (IMO group of
companies). He is Chairman of the Non-Clinical Risk Assurance Committee. Alexander was
appointed on 1 June, 2006 and reappointed for a further term until 31 May 2012.
Executive Directors:
During 2011-12 the Executive Directors were;
Chief Executive, Gavin Boyle: Before joining Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
in August 2007 Gavin was Director of Operations at Leeds Teaching Hospitals, the UK’s
largest acute trust. Gavin’s NHS career began almost 20 years ago as a management
trainee in Liverpool where he worked both in primary care organisations and hospitals before
moving to Exeter to manage orthopaedic services. From Exeter he moved to Winchester to
take on responsibility for all surgical (and some community) services. Gavin has also held
director posts at the Oxford Radcliffe NHS Trust and the Queens Medical Centre,
Nottingham. Gavin left the Trust on 25 March 2012 to become Chief Executive of
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.
Director of Finance and Deputy Chief Executive, Elisabeth Walters: Known to all her
colleagues as Libby, Mrs Walters joined the Trust in 1994 as a national finance trainee. She
was Deputy Director of Finance for five years, and served as Acting Director of Finance
during that time. Libby has a particular interest in ensuring that the focus on use of resources
is intrinsically linked with improving quality care. Libby is the Chair of the Healthcare Finance
Management Association South West Branch. During the year Libby was appointed as
Deputy Chief Executive. From 26 March 2012 Libby became Acting Chief Executive.
Acting Director of Finance, Pippa Moger: From 26 March 2012 Pippa took up this post to
cover for Libby Walters whilst she was Acting Chief Executive. Pippa’s substantive role is
Deputy Director of Finance, a position she has held since March 2009. Pippa joined the
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Trust from NHS South West. Her previous experience in primary care enables the Trust to
work very effectively with its commissioning partners.
Medical Director, Jon Howes: Jon took on the role of Medical Director in 2010 after six
years’ service with the Trust. He graduated from St George's Hospital Medical School,
University of London in 1989. Jon obtained his FRCA (Fellowship of the Royal College of
Anaesthetists) in 1994 and four years later was appointed to his first consultant post. Having
spent five years at Gwent Healthcare NHS Trust as a Consultant in Anaesthesia and
Intensive Care, Jon then moved to join Yeovil District Hospital in 2004. As Lead Consultant
in Intensive Care he headed the development of the new state of the art intensive care unit
which opened in 2007. He was subsequently appointed Clinical Director for Critical Care
2007 and Deputy Medical Director 2009 before becoming Medical Director.
Director of Nursing and Clinical Governance, Sue Jones: Sue joined the Trust in July
2009 and was previously Interim Deputy Chief Nurse at University Hospitals Bristol NHS
Foundation Trust which she joined as a student nurse in 1981. During this time her roles
included Head of Nursing and Assistant Chief Nurse responsible for the medical wards in the
Bristol Royal Infirmary, A&E, Outpatients and Bristol General Hospital. Prior to that Sue was
Assistant Director of Nursing responsible for research and practice development. Much of
Sue’s clinical practice was in paediatrics.
Also attending Board meetings as non-voting directors were:
Director of Operations, Jonathan Higman: Jonathan first joined the Trust in February
2002 as a General Manager. He then moved to the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS
Foundation Trust in March 2007 before returning to Yeovil in January 2008 to take up his
current role. Jonathan has experience of managing a range of services including acute
medicine, care of the elderly, accident and emergency, anaesthetics, theatres, intensive care
and paediatrics. The Director of Operations is responsible for service delivery, ensuring
clinical services are delivered to a high quality and are both efficient and achieve the
standards set locally and nationally.
Director of Planning and Performance, Jeremy Martin: Jeremy joined Yeovil District
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust in July 2009 from the Royal United Hospital Bath where, for
the previous five years, he was Head of Business Development and Improvement.
Director of Human Resources, Alison Rayner: Alison joined the Trust in February 2008.
Alison has considerable NHS experience, having held HR director roles with the Combined
Community Mental Health Learning Disability Trust in West London where she was in post
for seven years, with Southampton Teaching Hospital for three years and, for the three years
prior to moving to Yeovil, as Director of HR for NHS Direct.
Director of Estates and Facilities, Robert Steele: Robert, who joined Yeovil District
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust in June 2008, has had a wide-ranging career in the NHS
starting in 1977 with Lanarkshire Health Board before a move to Gwent Healthcare NHS
Trust. Before coming to Yeovil he was Head of Estates at Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust.
Having gained extensive experience in all aspects of estate management across various
roles in the NHS Robert is passionate about maintaining and improving the healing
environment.
Balance of the Board of Directors
As part of the process of reviewing the recruitment of successors to the Non-Executive
Directors whose terms of office expire in 2012 the Board of Directors and the Board of
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Governors’ Nominations Committee reviewed the current Directors’ skill set. There was
agreement that the current Boards possessed balance and completeness.
Performance evaluation
Each director has had an individual performance review, undertaken by the Chairman for
Non-Executive Directors and by the Chief Executive for other directors. The three assurance
committees have each reviewed their own performance and the Board itself has spent time
in independently-facilitated sessions considering its performance. Each form of assessment
utilised a variety of 360 degree feedback, review of that feedback and agreed actions for
further development.
Chairman’s significant commitments
Neither Chairman had any significant commitments that could detract from the performance
of the role, or raise any issues of conflict of interest.
Audit Committee
The Chair of the Audit Committee is John Buckley, Non-Executive Director. There are two
other Non-Executive Director members, Amanda Ellingworth and Julian Grazebrook. Four
meetings were held during the year. John Buckley attended all four, and Amanda Ellingworth
and Julian Grazebrook attended three meetings. Gill Waldron also attended two meetings:
all Non-Executive Directors are considered to be members of the Committee according to
the terms of reference.
The Audit Committee is a committee of the Board of Directors and one of YDH’s assurance
committees. It has responsibility for providing assurance to the Board concerning the system
of internal control for financial management. It receives reports from the external auditors
and, on financial matters, from the internal auditors.
At the June 2011 meeting of the Board of Governors the Chair of the Audit Committee and
Director of Finance reported that, due to successful negotiation on fees with KPMG, it was
recommended that the one year extension for the external auditors, agreed at the previous
meeting, be converted to a two year extension. This recommendation was approved by the
Board of Governors.
During the year the external auditors were also engaged to act as VAT advisors to YDH.
This is a specific and technical role relating to whether YDH has correctly treated VAT issues
on contracted out services. This service is provided by a separate department within KPMG
and has no impact on the objectivity or independence of the external audit work. In addition,
KPMG provided accounting advice in relation to the creation of a joint venture pathology
service in collaboration with Taunton & Somerset NHS Foundation Trust and a commercial
third party. Again, the service provided was quite distinct from the department engaged to
perform audit services.
Nominations Committee
YDH has a separate Governors’ Nominations Committee chaired normally by the Chairman
of the Trust. The Committee’s membership is constituted in accordance with the Constitution
and Standing Orders. Its work in appointing a new Chairman is described above in
connection with the Board of Governors. In addition the Committee has sought to recruit
successors for two NEDs whose terms expire at the end of May 2012 and two others whose
terms end at the end of May 2013.
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In both processes, following a competitive process, Harvey Nash was appointed to provide
support and advice. Both the Chairman appointment and the other NED appointments were
prominently advertised in national publications and short lists with formal interviews were
conducted before recommendations for appointment were made.
The Board of Directors’ Remuneration Committee also performs the role of Nominations
Committee for appointment of executive directors. The Committee is chaired by the Trust’s
Chairman and the other NEDs are members. During the year a new Chief Executive was
recruited to succeed Gavin Boyle. Again, following a competitive process Harvey Nash was
appointed to provide support and advice. YDH has a well-developed process for high level
appointments and a similar approach to the non-executive appointments was used with the
candidates for Chief Executive. The process successfully identified Paul Mears, whose
appointment was ratified by the Board of Governors and he will take up his post on 8 May
2012.
Membership
The public constituency is for anyone living in England aged 14 or over and is divided into
six areas, five of which cover core wards and districts served by YDH across Dorset and
Somerset. The sixth constituency allows members from a wider area to become involved. At
the end of 2011-12 membership of the public constituency stood at 8,159, an increase of
2.77% from the start of the year. Public membership equates to approximately 5% of our
catchment area. The public membership for each of the six public constituencies is given
below:
Public Membership

Constituency

Greater
Yeovil

South
Somerset
(S&W)

South
Somerset
(N&E)

Dorset

Mendip

Rest of
Somerset
& England

Totals

At 31/03/12

2,578

1,856

2,074

919

592

140

8159

Staff Membership
Staff Membership

2011-12

At 31/3/12

968

% Growth over the year

10 %

At the year end the staff constituency comprised 44% of all members of staff. Staff members
are recruited on an opt-out basis; this means that staff automatically become members of
the NHS Foundation Trust if they are employed by YDH either full or part time, either
substantively or on temporary contract of at least 12 months. A system of checking for those
who have left YDH has been established. We regularly review staff membership for leavers
and those who move into public constituencies. These are converted to public members for
the constituency in which they live.
Membership Strategy
The Membership Strategy was developed by the Membership and Communications Group
of the Board of Governors and supported by the full board. The Working Group is
established to evaluate membership, recruitment opportunities and activities. It not only
looks at growing membership numbers and ensuring a representative membership, but also
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focuses on communicating with them. The Working Group comprises public, staff and
appointed governors, and members of staff and is led by a public governor. The group
reports to the Board of Governors’ meetings.
We regularly hold member-only events, open constituency meetings and produce marketing
and publicity material. Governors undertake opportunistic recruitment. A volunteer and
groups of Governors recruit regularly in the Outpatients Department. The initial recruitment
target for 2011-2012 of 8,000 members was achieved and exceeded, membership
eventually reaching 8,159.
In 2011-12, we continued to build on our reputation for members’ evenings on clinical topics
(How to Save 7 Lives, Looking After Your Liver, The New NHS Landscape, Asthma and
Osteoporosis) and held constituency meetings. The evenings were held in venues central to
each constituency and were attended by either the Chief Executive, Chairman, Directors or
Non-Executive Directors. Local public Governors also attended. Each member’s household
was written to inviting them to their local constituency meeting. The quarterly newsletter
‘News from YDH’ also listed the constituency meetings and members evenings at the
hospital. Attendees welcomed the opportunity to meet YDH clinicians, management and
governors.
We have contacted local schools to increase involvement and we present to students on
health related learning programmes. Schools are provided with promotional material about
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and membership, which is also publicised at
our Schools’ Science Day. We are also present at local careers fairs.
Targets for 2012-13
The Governors are keen to continue to build on the recruitment achievements of 2011-12
and have set a growth target for 2012-13 of approximately 5% to maintain 8,200 public
members by year end. Their focus remains on the involvement of existing members.
Contacting the Trust
All member households receive the hospital newsletter ‘News from YDH’ on a quarterly
basis. This publishes contact details of the Membership Co-ordinator if they wish to contact
the Trust directly. Individual members are also written to annually. Any member wishing to
raise any issue with a director or governor can do so through writing to the individual at
Yeovil Hospital or by contacting the Membership Co-ordinator.

5. Quality Report
STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
The quality of care for our patients has always been at the heart of everything we do. This
means our patients are provided with the best possible care by well trained staff, treated with
dignity and respect as well as an individual. Our focus is to consistently deliver excellent
outcomes of care and ensure we collect accurate information about how patients experience
our services.
YDH has had a successful year with a strong focus on reducing mortality rates, improving
our information systems and implementing best practice. Going forward we will continue to
listen to patients and collect much more information about how patients experience our
services, and view their outcomes to make sure that our services continuously improve. The
priorities we chose for improving quality support our commitment to the delivery of high
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quality, safe care and were fully supported by the Board of Directors, the Board of Governors
and the Commissioning Primary Care Trust.
We are pleased to be able to highlight success in the reduction of our mortality rates and we
have also continued to perform exceptionally well in respect of Healthcare Acquired
Infections. Our Quality Strategy for Achieving Excellence in Clinical Care has ensured a wide
range of patient safety improvements have been delivered across our specialties and
services. Improving the quality of our services is supported further through the participation
in the NHS South West Patient Safety and Quality Improvement Programme which enables
us to share our experiences and learning on patient safety with colleagues across the South
West.
This report does not include the entire work we have undertaken on improving quality but it
outlines the activities that we have prioritised during 2011-12 and the progress we have
made in respect of improving the quality of care and patient safety across YDH. We
therefore trust that it provides an accurate account of our quality activity and demonstrates
our commitment to putting the quality of care for our patients at the heart of all that we do.
To the best of my knowledge the information in this document is accurate.

Paul Mears
Chief Executive

PRIORITIES FOR IMPROVEMENT AND STATEMENTS OF ASSURANCE FROM THE
BOARD
2011-12 Priorities for improvement
In the last annual report we promised to focus on a number of local priorities for
improvement during 2011-12. The key goals for quality were:
•
•
•
•
•

To reduce our Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR)
To keep our patients safe, by continuing to reduce healthcare associated infections,
patient falls, hospital acquired pressure sores by 50% and avoidable venous
thrombo-embolism (VTE)
To improve the personalisation of care provided to our patients; in particular focusing
on dignity, improving the care of people with dementia and patients with a learning
disability
To better understand clinical outcomes for our patients, by increasing the number of
clinical audits undertaken and developing additional in-house Patient Reported
Outcome Measure (PROMs)
To gain a better understanding of our patients’ experience by investment in software
to support ways of collecting timely feedback from our patients
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Statements of Assurance from the Board
The Board of Directors at Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust agreed a series of
indicators to monitor the quality of care provided to its patients. Progress against these key
performance indicators was monitored via a dashboard presented on a monthly basis to the
Board. The following section outlines the indicators, explaining the rationale for their
inclusion and year on year progress against the measures.
The Trust achieved the following national performance targets across the year:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

We reported 23 hospital acquired cases of Clostridium difficile against a target of no
more than 29
92.1% of our patients were admitted within 18 weeks
96% of patients needing an outpatient appointment were seen within 18 weeks
The pathway of care for most patients was completed within 24.5 weeks against a
target of 28 weeks
All patients whose operations were cancelled operations were admitted within 28
days of the cancellation
93.5% patients with a suspected diagnosis of cancer were seen within two weeks of
referral
95.8% of patients referred with asymptomatic breast cancer were seen within two
weeks of referrals
98.7% of cancer patients started their treatment within 31 days after the decision to
treat was made
All cancer patients started their drug treatment within 31 days after the decision to
treat was made
98.2% of cancer patients needing surgery had their operation within 31 days
91% of cancer patients started their treatment within 62 days
95.9% of Emergency Department patients were seen and treated within four hours of
arrival
Patients who have spent more than 90% of their stay on the stroke unit (achieved
74.7% v 80% target)
1.4% of patients who were ready to be discharged or transferred to another care
provider were delayed due to external reasons (against a target of no more than 3%)

In summary we have achieved all of these standards across each of the four quarters of
2011-12 with one exception – the stroke indicator. This relates to the proportion of stroke
patients who spend more than 90% of their stay on the Acute Stroke Unit. The National
target is that 80% of all stroke patients admitted to YDH spend 90% or more of their time on
a specialist stroke unit. Across 2011-12 74.7% of stroke patients admitted to YDH achieved
this target. We have done significant work during the year to address this and performance
significantly improved during the second half of the year. We remain committed to improving
stroke care further and is working with the NHS Institute for Innovation and Improvement to
improve the early diagnosis of strokes to enable a fast-track admission to the Acute Stroke
Unit. In addition, we are working closely with the new Stroke Rehabilitation facility at South
Petherton Hospital to ensure a smooth transition for patients requiring on-going
rehabilitation.
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YDH has continued to see a high number of patients being treated within its facilities as
shown by the figures below:
Attendance figures 2009-10 compared to 2010-11 and 2011-12
A&E Attendances
Emergency Admissions
GP Referrals
Surgical Procedures
Outpatient Attendances
Babies Born

2009-10
42,635
20,388
27,596
18,565
154,145
1,587

2010-11
42,672
17,882
25,925
20,232
169,961
1,581

2011-12
43,915
17,628
25,018
19,706
162,790
1,564

Feedback from staff and patients was positive with the outcome of the outpatient and staff
surveys rating us in the top 20% of hospitals.
Progress against national quality improvement priorities 2011-12
During the year we made considerable progress against a number of national quality targets,
all of which have had a positive influence on the care we provide for our patients. Progress
made against these national 2011-12 priorities is detailed below and categorised under the
three headings for quality.
Patient Safety
Priority
No more than one hospital
acquired Meticillin Resistant
Staphylococcus Aureus
(MRSA)
No more than 29 post 72 hour
Clostridium difficile
Ensure that 90% of patients
are risk assessed in respect of
VTE

Ensure
prescribing
of
appropriate
preventative
treatment in respect of VTE
Reduce avoidable hospital
acquired VTE to no more than
5% of all cases and to
undertake
internal
investigations into all hospital
acquired VTE cases

Achievement
We reported two cases, only one of which was a true
blood stream infection. The second was a
contaminated sample and provided us with an
opportunity to review our process for taking blood
culture samples and to improve our training
programme for staff.
We reported 23 cases, which is a great
achievement.
This measure has been high on national, regional
and local agendas since the publication of the All
Parliamentary Thrombolysis Group Report and the
Clinical Guidance from NICE. The data for this
measure is completed as a mandatory return via
Unify. We achieved 91.1% in March 2012 and the
year to date achievement was 76.5%
This data was obtained from a snapshot audit
conducted during quarter one of 2011-12. We
achieved this in 88% of cases in respect of chemical
treatment and 76% of cases received mechanical
prophylaxis.
During the year, we identified 34 cases of hospital
acquired VTE out of a total of 185 cases. Following
careful investigation 10 of these (just over 5% of all
cases) were considered avoidable. We have now
developed a template for investigating these cases,
to ensure consistency in reviews.
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Clinical Outcome
Priority
Reduce our HSMR by 2.5%

Achievement
We are on target to achieve this reduction with our
HSMR at the end of January reported as 100.4
compared with a year-end figure of 110.7 in 2010-11.
In order to achieve this we have continued our
involvement in the NHS South West programme of
patient safety improvement, making good progress in
all the work-streams. We have introduced monthly
notes’ reviews using the Global Trigger Tool and we
also review the records of all patients who die in our
care to ensure there are no lessons to learn.
Review clinical data from the Limited data has been available, but we have
national Patient Reported continued with good participation rates for all the
Outcome
Measures relevant national PROMS.
(PROMS)
Patient Experience
Priority
Ensuring that our patients
have a positive experience
whilst in our care

Achievement
We have seen an improvement in our national survey
results for the outpatient services we provide. We
achieved a 65% response rate, which is an
improvement on the 2009 response rate of 60%, and
there was an improvement in 19 scores, 10 remained
the same and deteriorated in seven.

To improve the care of We achieved compliance with level 1 standards and
people with dementia whilst feedback from the peer review was extremely positive.
in hospital by achieving level
1 of the South West
Dementia Partnership and
Peer Review process
Additional local priorities were also identified in the Quality Report for 2010-11 and were also
detailed in our updated Quality Strategy, which was fully endorsed by the Board of Directors
and Board of Governors. Achievement against these local priorities is detailed below:
Patient safety
1. To reduce the number of patient falls across the hospital
We set two targets in respect of patient falls. The first was a 10% reduction on the previous
year’s data, which meant we were aiming for no more than 824 patient falls during the year.
We did not achieve this target, with a total of 859 patient falls reported, which equate to a 6%
reduction on last year’s data. Although we have made an improvement we are committed to
reducing falls further during 2012-13. This figure is amended from the 2010-11 report as the
data was frozen at the time of publication. However, due to the nature of incident reporting,
additional patient falls were reported after the “cut-off” date for the report. Whilst timely
incident reporting is actively encouraged it is anticipated that there may be a small number of
patient falls that are reported after the publication of this year’s report, which will change the
actual target figure for falls.
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The second target was a 10% reduction in the number of falls that result in harm to patients.
The number of falls that cause harm to our patients is a relatively low percentage with 3.8%
(33 falls) reported in 2011-12 compared with 2.6% (24 falls) reported during 2010-11. For
each fall that results in an injury to a patient we conduct a root cause analysis to see if there
are lessons we can learn to prevent a similar incident from happening again.
2. To reduce the number of hospital acquired pressure sores by 50%
This target related to pressure sores categorised as grade 2 and above, and the first quarter
of this year was the baseline for the 50% reduction. Between 1st April and 30th June 2011 we
reported 52 which set our target of no more than 26 for the period 1st January to 31st March
2012. We did not achieve this target and have reported 53 in the last quarter against the
target of 26. During the year a total of 190 hospital-acquired pressure ulcers of grade 2 or
above were reported, which equates to 1.87 per 1,000 bed days. What we have seen is a
reduction in grade 4 hospital acquired pressure sores, which are the most serious type and a
gradual decrease in grade 3 pressure ulcers. This is an indication that we are identifying
pressure sores at an earlier stage and working hard to prevent them deteriorating further.
The chart below shows the number and grade of pressure sore reported by month.

Patient Experience
1. To improve the personalisation of care provided to our patients using the Trust’s iCARE
philosophy and focusing on dignity.
Our staff have adopted the iCARE principles as a set of core values, and this drives our
journey forward. These values mean that we will:
• COMMUNICATE effectively
• Show a positive ATTITUDE
• Have RESPECT for our patients, carer and colleagues
• Maintain an ENVIRONMENT that is conducive to care and recovery
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Three key questions in our monthly “Your Care” satisfaction questionnaires and anonymous
EXIT questionnaires were identified as an indicator of the quality of care provided to our
patients. It is reassuring that our patients continue to give positive feedback of these three
key overarching questions and the results are detailed in the following table along with the
results compared with the previous year:
Question
Percentage of patients rating their care as good or
excellent
Percentage of patients rating staff attitude as
excellent or good
Percentage of patients rating cleanliness as
excellent or good

2010-11

2011-12

94%

96%

96%

97%

99%

98%

2. To improve the care of people with dementia whilst in hospital by achieving level 1 of the
South West Dementia Partnership and Peer Review process.
During the year YDH was subject to a peer review process to assess our achievement
against the regional standards for the care of patients with dementia. We achieved level 1
compliance with these standards and the feedback from the peer review was extremely
positive. The following are examples of the comments included in the report “The review
team had a very positive experience on the day and were made to feel welcome by all the
staff they met. The organisation demonstrated strong leadership and a commitment to
improving the care of patients with dementia, and there was clear evidence that the
organisation had embraced the dementia agenda. There were numerous examples of
patient centred care, and strong clinical leadership. The review team was pleased with the
planned Estates Strategic Plan to achieve a dementia friendly environment”.
3. To continue with the progress made in improving the standard of care for patients with a
learning disability
During the year we appointed a Learning Disability Liaison nurse in conjunction with
Musgrove Park Hospital. Her key achievements have included raising staff awareness of her
role by visiting wards and departments, and providing ad hoc training sessions in conjunction
within the Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults lead. One of the most important areas of work has
been liaising with colleagues in the community in the planning for admissions and
discharges of this group of vulnerable patients.
During the year the Learning Disabilities Liaison Nurse has responded to 65 referrals to
either visit inpatients or support patients attending for outpatient appointments or
investigations since July 2011. A total of 115 patients with a learning disability were recorded
as having been admitted during the year, but not all of these would have required help or
support from the Learning Disabilities Liaison Nurse, which explains the difference in referral
numbers.
4. To increase the number of clinical audits undertaken by non-medical staff by 10%
Historically the majority of clinical audits are led by medical staff (that is, doctors) and we
were keen to improve engagement from other groups of staff. During the year we have seen
an 8% increase in the number of audits led by staff other than doctors.
5. To develop at least one new in-house Patient Reported Outcome Measure (PROMs).
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YDH has actively participated in the relevant national PROMs for total hip replacement, total
knee replacement and inguinal hernia repair. However, we have also developed a number of
locally selected PROMs:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Ultrasound guided steroid injections
Use of Pilates for patients attending physiotherapy
Shoulder distension
Enhanced recovery for laparoscopic colorectal surgery

6. To ensure that 85% of all complainants receive a response within the agreed timescale.
We are committed to providing high quality, safe services and on the occasions when
patients have concerns about the care we provide we are committed to investigating and
responding in a timely manner. There was a 13% reduction in formal complaints in the year
from 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012 (226 compared with 261). We provided a response to
94% of our complainants within the agreed timescale
7. To increase the number of EXIT questionnaires received by 20%
During the year we received a total of 1060 completed EXIT questionnaires, which is a 24%
increase on the number received during 2010-11.
8. To improve the use of real-time patient experience data by investment in software to
support touch-screen, web-based and tablet PC surveys and qualitative studies to support
service improvement.
We have invested in specialised survey software, two free standing kiosks and four iPads to
aid the collection of real-time patient satisfaction data. The software enables the surveys to
be set up electronically and added to our website, to kiosks and iPads. We are also
participating in a pilot with the coordinators of the national survey programme whereby the
national Emergency Department survey will be available for completion electronically to see
if this will help to improve response rates. Whilst the use of the software and hardware is still
in its initial stages, early use of it has proved to be very positive and it is hoped that it will
considerably increase the number of patients asked for their feedback.
Review of Our Services
During 2011-12 Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust provided 37 NHS services.
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has reviewed all of the data available to it on
the quality of care in all of these NHS services.
The income generated by the NHS services reviewed in 2011-12 represents 100% of the
total income generated from the provision of NHS services by YDH for 2011-12.
Participation in National Clinical Audits and Confidential Enquiries
During 2011-12 31 national clinical audits and two national confidential enquiries covered
NHS services that Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust provides. During that
period we participated in 87% (27 of 31) of national clinical audits and 100% of national
confidential enquiries.
The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that Yeovil District Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust was eligible to participate in during 2011-12 are shown in the
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following table, along with the data collection and number of cases submitted to each audit
as a percentage of the number of cases required by that audit or national enquiry.
Audit Title

Participation

% cases submitted

Alcoholic liver disease (National Confidential
Enquiry into Peri-operative Deaths)
British Thoracic Society - Adult Asthma Audit
British Thoracic Society - Bronchiectasis
Audit
British Thoracic Society - Emergency Oxygen
Audit
British Thoracic Society - Non-Invasive
Ventilation National Audit
British Thoracic Society - Pleural Procedure's
National Audit
National Audit of Cardiac Rehabilitation
Care of the Dying Audit - Hospitals (NCDAH)
2011/2012 (3rd Round)
College of Emergency Medicine - Audit of
Consultant Sign-Off in the Emergency
Department
College of Emergency Medicine - Audit of
Management of Severe Sepsis and Septic
Shock in Adults in the Emergency
Department
College of Emergency Medicine - Audit of
Management of Pain in Children in the
Emergency Department
Deaths after Paediatric Surgery

Yes
Yes
Yes

On-going data
collection
100%
100%

Yes

100%

Yes

100%

Yes

100%

Yes
Yes

100%
100%

Yes

100%

Yes

100%

Yes

100%

Not
applicable to
Trust
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

N/A
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Yes
Yes

100%
100%

Yes

100%

Yes

100%

Yes

100%

Yes

100%

Not
applicable to
Trust

N/A

Diabetes inpatient audit day
Epilepsy12 National Audit
National heart failure audit
Audit of Heavy Menstrual Bleeding
The Irritable Bowel Disease (IBD) nurse:
2011 project
ICNARC Audit
National Audit of Diagnostic adequacy,
Accuracy and Complications of ImageGuided or Assisted liver Biopsies
Comparative Audit of the Medical Use of Red
Cells
National One Week prevalence audit of
MRSA screening
Audit of services for people with Multiple
Sclerosis 2011
The Myocardial Ischemia National Audit
Project (MINAP)
National Neonatal Audit
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National
Sudden
Arrhythmic
Death
Syndrome Audit
CEMACH Obesity in Pregnancy Audit
Paediatric diabetes audit

No

N/A

No
Yes

N/A
100%

Audit Title (continued)
Participation
Parkinson's Audit
Yes
Patient
reported
outcome
measures
Yes
(PROMs) for elective hernia surgery
Patient
reported
outcome
measures
Yes
(PROMs) for elective hip replacements
Patient
reported
outcome
measures
Yes
(PROMs) for elective knee replacements
Stroke
Improvement
National
Audit
Yes
Programme. (SINAP)
Sub Arachnoid Haemorrhage (National
Yes
Confidential Enquiry into Peri-operative
Deaths)
Supervisor of Midwives Audit
Yes

% cases submitted
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
On-going data
collection
100%

The reports of 13 national clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 2011-12 (the
remainder are still awaited), but the majority of these were received at the end of the
financial year and are currently with the clinical teams to identify the actions to be taken to
ensure an improvement in the quality of healthcare provided:
Participation in Local Clinical Audits
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust reviewed reports of 80 local clinical audits in
2011-12 and we intend to take the following actions to improve the quality of healthcare
provided:
•

Increase the number of Hysteroscopy procedures that are done under local
anaesthetic in theatre

•

Introduce an online assessment to ensure that staff understand how to calculate fluid
and insulin requirements

•

The Trust's guidelines for Paediatric Bronchiolitis Management have been updated

•

A presentation to be included at the junior doctor’s induction to highlight the
importance of good documentation of medical proformas

•

Carbon copy of the Ambulance Crew Sheets now retained in the patient’s notes and
not a photocopy to improve legibility

•

Training sessions to be run for ED staff on how to perform ankle-strapping

•

Consider introducing a rubber stamp or sticker in the patients’ notes, which mandates
each of the key times to be noted.

•

The introduction of a Rehabilitation pathway in compliance with NICE guidance

•

Introduce a more comprehensive admission proforma which is in line with current
guidelines
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Research
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has an active and well established
Department of Research and over the last year record numbers of patients have welcomed
the opportunity to take part in clinical research studies available here. Patients who are
eligible for a research study and consent to take part are cared for by an experienced team
of research staff who provide individual support throughout. There has been a year-on-year
increase in providing access to new drugs and treatments across most disease areas,
particularly the common cancers, diabetes, heart disease, arthritis and stroke.
The number of patients receiving NHS services provided by Yeovil District Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust that were recruited during 2011-12 to participate in research approved by a
research ethics committee was 710.
Consultant colorectal surgeon Nader Francis has been awarded another prestigious grant by
the National Institute for Health Research, to conduct a research study investigating the gap
between chemoradiation (chemotherapy and radiotherapy) and surgery in patients with
rectal cancer.
The study will look at the differences in surgical technique following either a 6 week or 12
week interval after chemoradiation. The research will initially be conducted across six local
hospitals and will hopefully lead to a larger study being run across other NHS trusts. The
results will help the NHS to establish the most clinical and cost-effective timing of surgery
following chemoradiation for patients with advanced rectal cancer.
Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) Objectives and Achievements for
2011-12
A proportion of Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust income in 2011-12 was
conditional upon achieving quality improvement and innovation goals agreed between Yeovil
District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and any person or body they entered into a contract,
agreement or arrangement with for the provision of NHS services, through the
Commissioning for Quality and Innovation payment framework. The income that was
conditional on achieving these goals was £1,342,745 in 2011-12, £1,124,463 for 2010-11
and £2,293,541 for 2012-13.
Registration
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is registered with the Care Quality
Commission. The Commission considers that the Trust is currently meeting all the expected
standards. The Care Quality Commission has not taken enforcement action against Yeovil
District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust during 2011-12. Yeovil District Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust is not subject to periodic review by the Care Quality Commission. Yeovil
District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has not been required to participate in any special
reviews or investigations by the CQC during the reporting period. A routine unannounced
inspection visit occurred in September 2011 and the Trust received a very positive report
with no recommendations for action.
The Quality of Data and Information Governance
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust submitted records during 2011-12 to the
Secondary Uses Service for inclusion in the Hospital Episode Statistics which are included in
the latest published data. The percentage of records in the published data:
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• which included the patient’s valid NHS number was 97.5% for admitted patient care;
99.3% for outpatient care and 77.4% for accident and emergency care
• which included the patient’s valid General Practitioner Registration Code was: 100%
for admitted patient care; 100% for outpatient care; and 99.9% for accident and
emergency care
The current underperformance in the Emergency Department patient NHS Number
compliance is the impact of a technical problem with the interface between the Emergency
Department system and the core Master Patient Index. This issue is under investigation with
the supplier, and should be resolved in the early part of 2012-13.
Yeovil District Hospital’s score for 2011-12 for Information Quality and Records Management
assessed using the Information Governance toolkit (Version 9) was 71% and was assessed
as not satisfactory as Level 2 has not yet been achieved in all of the standards. Further work
is planned in 2012-13 to improve this to an acceptable standard. However, there are two
main hurdles to achieving compliance with level 2. The first is our inability to track and audit
user access to the Patient Administration System (PAS) and this will not be resolved until the
PAS is upgraded. The second significant hurdle is a lack of corporate records life cycle
arrangements but it is anticipated that this will be addressed by the introduction of new
software that has this capability.
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust was subject to the Payment By Results (PBR)
clinical coding audit during the period by the Audit Commission and the error rates reported
in the latest published audit for the period for diagnosis and treatments coding (clinical
coding) were 11.0% compared to the national average in 2011-12 of 9.1%. The audit
provided information that will help both commissioners and providers decide whether
controls over the accuracy of their data are adequate, and highlighted areas of concern that
they may wish to investigate further. The audit examined one main specialty, general
medicine and a cross section across all other specialties as part of the benchmarking
exercise.
Other Information
The following section provides an overview of the care provided by YDH during 2011-12
against a set of key quality indicators selected by the Board of Directors and in conjunction
with key stakeholders. The indicators show our continued commitment to patient safety,
good clinical outcomes and a positive patient experience.
Patient Safety Reporting and Management of Adverse Events
We have a positive approach to incident reporting and actively encourage staff to report near
misses and patient safety incidents. During the year the web-based incident reporting
system has been fully rolled out across the organisation and this has resulted in earlier and
more accurate reporting of incidents and a greater ability to identify trends. All reports are
reviewed by a senior manager with comprehensive investigations conducted into the more
significant incidents. The aim is to ensure that lessons are learned and then shared widely to
reduce the likelihood of a recurrence.
The total number of incidents and accidents reported increased by 13% compared with the
previous year (4,033 compared with 3,563). The number of patient safety reported incidents
has also increased by 20% during the same period with 2,765 reported compared with 2,308
during the previous year. It should be noted that this data is accurate up to 30th April 2012, at
which point there were still 207 incidents in the web-holding file awaiting final comments
from managers before the submission to the database. The following chart shows data for
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the past two years related to reported patient safety incidents that resulted in harm
compared with near miss or no harm incidents.

During 2010-11 90% of all reported incidents were classed as no harm and during 2011-12
this had reduced slightly to 86%. This change can be attributed to staff now scoring incidents
more accurately as a result of their on-going training, and staff in the Maternity unit now
reporting all maternity related incidents as a specific cause group, which is new category
introduced during the year. During the year 79 investigations were commissioned – a
significant increase (44%) compared with 55 in 2010-11. This increase can be attributed to a
very low threshold for undertaking root cause analysis (RCA) investigations within YDH, and
an open reporting culture amongst staff. 44 of these incidents were reported to NHS
Somerset as required. The following chart shows the increasing trend over the past 10
years;
38

YDH routinely reports all patient safety incidents to the National Patient Safety Agency
(NPSA) and National Reporting and Learning System (NRLS). The Primary Care Trust set
us a target for 2011-12 to work towards increasing our incident reporting rate to ensure that
we are in the top-reporting group as recorded by the NRLS. For 2011-12 we aimed to
increase incident reporting by 10% whilst maintaining the accuracy and quality of reporting
and we actually achieved 13%.
Reducing patient falls by 10%
Reducing falls is important to patients, relatives and staff. Whilst it is true that some patients
are at high risk of falling, either as a result of their rehabilitation or condition, it is equally
accepted that this causes distress, loss of confidence and in some cases serious injury to
patients. The length of stay for patients who have fallen whilst in hospital is often increased
as staff attempt to improve their mobility and confidence. The run chart below shows the
number of patient falls and the rate of falls per 1,000 bed days for 2011-12. This data is
shared with clinical staff and the Board of Directors on a monthly basis. The second graph
shows the breakdown of patient reported falls by degree of harm.
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Preventing venous thrombo-emboli (VTEs):
There is a continued national emphasis on the assessment and prevention of venous
thrombo-emboli. YDH has a well-established VTE Committee to take forward this vital work
across the organisation. During the year the newly revised prescription chart incorporating
the VTE risk assessment tool was introduced across YDH. The target is to ensure that 90%
of our patients are risk assessed within 24 hours of admission. The data capture of
compliance with this assessment is through the monthly mandatory return to the Department
of Health. This is broken down by department and the results are shared with each team on
a monthly basis. If a patient develops a pulmonary embolism or deep vein thrombosis during
hospital admission a full root cause analysis is completed to identify any lessons to improve
the care for future patients. At year end we have identified that in 10 patients who develop a
hospital acquired VTE this was avoidable.
Medication errors

YDH has continued to work hard to raise awareness of medication errors and encourage
continued reporting of all incidents relating to medicines use. We have a Patient Medication
Safety Group, chaired by the Divisional Director for Medicine, which continues to regularly
assess medication incidents and review ways in which these errors can be avoided. An
important part of this is the production of a bulletin summarising key safety messages as well
as listing all recent medication incidents. This is distributed to all our doctors and nurses.
During 2011-12 there was a 13% increase in the overall number of medication incidents
reported at YDH. Analysis of this data shows an incidence of 2.7% for incidents actually
requiring medical treatment, affecting 16 patients in total. This compares with 2.2% for 200910, and 2.3% for 2010-11. The following chart shows this breakdown pictorially;
Much of this increase can be attributed to the new web-based reporting system that has
been rolled out to all areas of the hospital, along with the system of medicines reconciliation
which has increased earlier identification of near miss or no harm events, such as
suboptimal prescribing patterns.
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Patient experience
There are a number of ways to judge whether we have provided a positive experience for
our patients; national survey results, in-house questionnaires, complaints and enquiries
made of the Patient Advice and Liaison service.
We have continued to participate in the national patient survey programme. During the year
three surveys were carried out; the national outpatient, inpatient and cancer experience
surveys (the results of the inpatient and cancer experience survey were not available at the
time of publication).
National cancer patients experience survey 2011
The field work is currently under way for this survey and the findings will be published later in
the year.
National inpatient survey
The field work for this survey was undertaken between September 2011 and January 2012.
The findings were published at the end of April 2012. We participated in this national survey
and sent out 850 questionnaires to patients who were admitted during July 2011. We had a
62% response rate, which is better than the national response rate of 53%.
The results of the survey were positive with YDH performing ‘as expected’ for 75 of the 77
questions asked. For the remaining two questions we scored worse than expected. Work is
already under way in respect of patients using the same bathroom as the opposite sex, and
further work is being undertaken to understand patients’ concerns about overall waiting time
to come into the hospital.
National outpatient survey 2011
We participated in this national survey and sent out 850 questionnaires to patients who had
attended our outpatient clinics during one month in 2011. We had a 65% response rate,
which is an improvement on the last time this survey was conducted in 2009 when our
response rate was 60%.
The results of this survey were once again very positive, showing a consistent level of
satisfaction when compared with the previous round of the survey in 2009. The Trust scored
‘better than expected’ in 4 questions and ‘about the same’ in the remaining 32 questions.
The scores had improved in 19 questions. Satisfaction with the department is also mirrored
in the comments received with many patients commenting on the ‘professional’, ‘kind’ and
‘caring’ attitude of staff. These are three comments received under the heading ‘What was
particularly good about your visit to the outpatient department?’:
“Given a choice I would choose Yeovil Hospital over others I have attended mainly due to
the friendly atmosphere and staff”
“I visit the outpatients a lot and have always received kindness and help”
“’All the staff were friendly and approachable, putting me at ease and made my visit very
positive”
When asked what could be improved, the themes coming through were with regard to being
informed about waiting times for their appointment, the cramped waiting area, how patients
are called for their appointment and a lack of continuity of care with seeing different doctors
on different visits regarding the same condition.
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YDH also runs an on-going programme of surveys known as the ‘Your Care’ questionnaire
which is facilitated by Patient and Public Involvement members. Each member is allocated a
ward or department and they aim to collect ten completed questionnaires each month.
Patients transferring between wards or being discharged home are also given an ‘EXIT’
questionnaire which asks three questions regarding the quality of care, attitude of staff and
the level of cleanliness.
A total of 42 additional in-house surveys were also undertaken or started during the year; 31
of them are still in progress. To date these surveys, including the Your Care and EXIT
questionnaires, have been given or sent out to over 5000 patients and service users.
•

We set a target of 90% for the percentage of patients rating the overall care as
excellent and very good and achieved 94% which was the same as last year. 94% of
patients rated the overall care as excellent.

•

We set a target of 90% for the percentage of patients rating staff attitude as excellent
or very good and we achieved 96% compared with 97% last year. 95% of patients
rated staff attitude as excellent.

•

We also measure patients’ opinion about the cleanliness of bathrooms and during the
year 99% rated this as excellent or very good, which was the same as last year with
98% rating the cleanliness of bathrooms as excellent.

Patient Advice & Liaison Service (PALS)
We have provided a Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) for the last 10 years and it
continues to be an invaluable and high profile service. The office is easily accessible for
patients and relatives wishing to raise concerns and other queries relating to health services.
PALS saw a decrease in activity during 2011-12, with 564 enquiries received during the year
compared with 708 enquiries during 2010-11. Quarter 4 saw the highest number of enquiries
this year with 185 received from January – March 2012; 68 in January, 62 in February and
55 in March.
The following graph shows the number of PALS enquiries received since 2002.
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Compliments and Complaints
The number of formal commendations received increased by 9% compared with 2010-11
(1978 compared with 1807). However, staff receive far more compliments than are recorded
centrally as many letters or thank you cards are sent directly to the wards and departments.
Between 1 April 2011 and 30 March 2012 there was a 13% decrease in formal complaints
compared with last year (226 compared with 261). 94% received a full response within the
timescale agreed with the individual which is a huge improvement on the previous year’s
performance. 19 complaints were re-opened during the year and two complainants asked
the Health Ombudsman for a review of our handling of their concerns.
Clinical Effectiveness
Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR):
The HSMR for YDH has been closely monitored throughout the year, and specific elements
have been subject to more detailed review, both for accuracy of coding and diagnosis. Our
position has improved throughout the year to 100.4 (up to the end of January 2012)
compared with 110.7 for the previous year. However, whilst this is an improvement, there is
still much work to be done, and this will remain a high priority for us.
The Dr Foster and Patient Safety steering group has continued to meet and oversee the
work to improve the HSMR. A programme of regular notes reviews has been undertaken,
with 20 sets of case notes reviewed every month. The notes are reviewed using a standard
template and the Global Trigger Tool, which is recommended by the Institute for Healthcare
Improvement. In addition to these reviews, the records of all patients who die in our care are
reviewed from a clinical care and end of life perspective and for accuracy of diagnosis and
coding.
We have also begun to develop and introduce care bundles for high risk conditions. A total
of four are now in use (falls, diarrhoea and vomiting, neutropenic sepsis and central venous
catheter insertion). One of the challenges for the coming year will be to introduce an audit
programme to assess compliance with the care bundles.
Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMs):
Since it started in April 2009 YDH has been participating in the national PROMs programme
for inguinal hernia repair, total knee replacements and total hip replacements.
During 2011-12 we also took part in the Heavy Menstrual Bleeding audit which was run
using the PROMS methodology. This was a year-long project the field work for which
finished in February 2012. Data will be available later in the year.
The target for all trusts is to have at least 80% of patients completing the initial PROMS
questionnaire at pre-assessment. The table below shows YDH’s performance over the three
years. Please note that due to the nature of how the data is collected and linked with
Hospital Episode Statistics (HES) data at the national Coordination Centre, there is a
considerable delay before finalised data is available. Cancelled operations can also impact
on the number of eligible episodes compared with the completed questionnaires result in
over 100% performance.
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The following data has been accessed from the HES online and is correct at the time of
writing.
National PROM
Inguinal hernia repair
Total hip replacement
Total knee replacement

Finalised data
01.04.09 to
31.03.10
68.4%
84.5%
90.3%

Provisional Data
01.04.10 to
01.04.11 to
31.03. 11
30.09.11
48.6%
31.8%
96.1%
87.6%
125.8%
116.8%

Over the last year Clinical Governance team has worked with the Outpatient team to try and
capture information from those patients that do not attend pre-assessment clinics for hernia
repairs but are seen instead in an outpatient clinic. This has been successful in increasing
the number of completed questionnaires; however this was not fully embedded until
November 2011 and is therefore not reflected in the above table.
Once the pre and post-operative questionnaires have been received they are linked and
compared to establish whether there has been an improvement in quality of life following the
operation. The following tables show the number of patients for whom the score increased,
stayed the same or decreased.
Inguinal hernia repair
Increase
Same
Decrease

Total hip replacement
Increase
Same
Decrease

Total
replacement
Increase
Same
Decrease

knee

Finalised data
Provisional Data
01.04.09 to 31.03.10 01.04.10 to 31.03.11 01.04.11 to 30.09.11
46/86 (53.5%)
35/75 (46.7%)
Current
linked
questionnaire count
26/86 (30.2%)
28/75 (37.3%)
<30 thus no data
provided due to
14/86 (16.3%)
12/75 (16%)
unreliability
Finalised data
Provisional Data
01.04.09 to 31.03.10 01.04.10 to 31.03.11 01.04.11 to 30.09.11
108/123 (87.8%)
122/143 (85.3%)
Current
linked
questionnaire count
7/123 (5.7%)
11/143 (7.7%)
<30 thus no data
provided due to
8/123 (6.5%)
10/143 (7%)
unreliability
Finalised data
01.04.09 to
31.03.10
77/101 (76.2%)
13/101 (12.9%)
11/101 (10.9%)

Provisional Data
01.04.10 to
01.04.11 to
31.03.11
30.09.11
93/116 (80.2%)
Current
linked
questionnaire
10/116 (8.6%)
count <30 thus no
data provided due
13/116 (11.2%)
to unreliability

It should be noted that the gynaecology menstrual bleeding PROM was introduced for a
limited time period and data was captured between 1st February 2011 and 1st February
2012.
We have also begun data collection for some local PROMs during the year, and the
procedures currently included are: ultrasound guided steroid injections, the use of Pilates for
patients attending physiotherapy, shoulder distension and enhanced recovery for
laparoscopic colorectal surgery.
44

Ensuring Compliance with NICE Guidance
All new guidelines issued by the National institute for Health and Clinical Excellence are
reviewed by the Clinical Governance team before being distributed to clinicians for
assessment of our compliance. The following table shows the number of new guidelines
issued and YDH’s position in respect of compliance with them;
Published Applicable Compliant
Technology
Appraisals
Medical
Technology
Guidance
Clinical
Guidelines
Interventional
Procedures

Still
under
review

31

23

16

6

1

2

6

4

0

0

4

0

19

16

2

9

0

5

35

11

2

3

2

4

Published Applicable Compliant
Public Health
Guidance
Diagnostic
Guidance

Partially
NonCompliant compliant

Partially
NonCompliant compliant

Still
under
review

2

1

1

0

0

0

3

2

0

0

0

2

Unplanned readmissions
Whilst individual services and clinicians have measured their clinical outcome data for a
number of years, YDH has previously concentrated on the Hospital Standardised Mortality
Rate. However, in addition to more detailed analysis of the HSMR, both hospital-wide and by
specialty, the we have also been reviewing data for two other issues: the percentage of
patients who have an unplanned readmission to the same specialty within 28 days of
discharge and the percentage of patients who have an unplanned return to theatre within the
same episode of care.
The figures for unplanned readmission to the same specialty within 28 days of discharge
provide an indication of patients who are either discharged earlier than would be ideal or
who develop late complications of treatment, such as deep vein thrombosis or infections.
The target for 2011-12 as agreed with the Primary Care Trust was that we would have no
emergency readmissions within 30 days of an elective admission, and we would show a
25% reduction in emergency readmissions within 30 days of an emergency admission. The
table below shows data for the last three years.
Unplanned returns to theatre
While it is accepted that some surgical procedures require more than one visit to theatre, it
should not be considered routine. This measure has helped to identify any trends by
procedure or clinical team.
During the year 83 patients were taken back to theatre within the same episode of care as
an unplanned procedure out of 6,493 theatre episodes. This equates to 1.2% of all theatre
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activity during the year. This data is presented to the Clinical Governance Delivery
Committee, Hospital Management Team and Board of Directors every month as part of the
performance dashboard report. The actual numbers are very small so firm conclusions
cannot be drawn. However, the results have been shared with the specialties involved and
the data will be monitored throughout the forthcoming year in conjunction with the data
available.
Total unplanned readmissions
Unplanned readmissions following
elective first admission
Unplanned readmissions following
emergency first admission
Unplanned returns to theatre

2009/10
5.9%

2010/11
5.4%

2011/12
14%

N/A

N/A

2.9%

N/A

N/A

11%

0.8%

0.6%

1.2%

Learning lessons
YDH realises the importance of learning lessons from problems that have occurred.
Whenever an incident is reported in the hospital a thorough investigation is carried out and
reports are made outlining areas for improvement. This information is shared with all grades
of clinical staff at a quarterly hospital-wide meeting. Changes made to services as a result of
incidents or complaints have included:
•

Introduction of a new discharge and transfer form in the Emergency Department

•

Introduction of new nursing documentation across the Trust

•

Development of a new policy for the transfer of patients

•

Introduction of a monthly check in Oral Maxillo-Facial department to ensure
equipment is in date

•

Mandatory training regarding the management of tissue viability amended to include
recognition of less common areas of risk

•

Introduction of care bundles for falls, management of neutropenic sepsis, diarrhoea
and vomiting, central venous catheter insertion.

•

Access Manager working with the Information team to develop a system to improve
the efficiency of responding to increased demand

•

Review of communication and feedback processes within the Day Surgery Unit
including telephone and written feedback

•

Commissioned audit of care pathways in Day Theatre

•

Review of current signage throughout the hospital to ensure all available toilets
including those designated for disabled use are clearly signposted

•

Pathology system to track all specimens including community based requests

•

Ward alarm systems on emergency exit door now checked daily as part of routine
ward monitoring

•

Developed policy and guidance for care of wandering patients

•

Refresher training introduced for all Radiology portering staff and changes to
procedures when ward patients are waiting on trolleys

•

Review of the process of self-administration of medicines within Maternity
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•

Promotion of the work of the hair loss co-ordinator to ensure service is known to all
staff and not restricted to oncology patients

•

Change to the systems for authorising taxi transport home out of hours for
Emergency Department patients

•

Pharmacy monitoring and acting on reasons for “missed doses” of drugs for all
inpatients.

•

Revision of flow chart for assessing patients at risk of self-harm who present to the
Emergency Department

•

Clear information and poster advising patients of medication charges when attending
the Emergency Department

•

Review of information leaflet relating to sedation for endoscopy procedures

•

Review of the use of the surgical checklist for procedures not carried out within the
operating theatre setting

•

Introduction of snapshot audits of compliance with the surgical checklist across all
specialities

Priorities for improvement for 2012-2013
For 2012-13 YDH has agreed the following priorities for improvement:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Further reduce our mortality indicators
Reduce patient falls by 10% (no more than 773)
Introduce the safety thermometer
Reduce the number of patients who fall more than once by 15% (Governors’ Key
Performance Indicator)
Reduce the number of hospital acquired pressure ulcers (grade 3 or 4) by 25%
Increase number of patients completing in-house satisfaction surveys
To reduce healthcare associated infections – in line with the local targets (MRSA,
Clostridium difficile and MSSA)
To maintain our involvement in the programme of patient safety improvement as set
by NHS South West
To develop two more in-house Patient Reported Outcome Measures
To ensure that 95% of complainants receive a response within the agreed timescale
To reduce the number of complaints where we re-negotiate the agreed timescale for
completion
To increase the number of EXIT questionnaires received by 20%
Continue with the development and roll-out of care bundles, in particular for
Dementia, Naso-Gastric tube insertion and Community Acquired Pneumonia.
To improve the accessibility of information available for patients with a learning
disability. This will be achieved by updating the internet and intranet site and review
and amend key information leaflets such as the Patient Advise and Liaison service
and “Welcome to YDH”

Progress against these priorities will be monitored by the Clinical Governance Delivery and
Assurance Committees with monthly updates to the Board of Directors.
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STATEMENTS FROM PRIMARY CARE TRUSTS, LOCAL INVOLVEMENT NETWORKS
AND OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES
1. Comments received from NHS Somerset (Commissioning Primary Care Trust)
As lead commissioner, NHS Somerset has monitored the safety, effectiveness and patient
experience of health services at Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust during 201112. The Trust engagement in the quality contract monitoring process provides the basis for
NHS Somerset to comment on the quality account including performance against quality
improvement priorities and the quality of the data included.
We have reviewed the achievements against the National Performance Indicators as
outlined in the account and can confirm that the reported position is accurate.
We have reviewed the identified Quality Improvement priorities for inclusion in the Quality
Accounts for 2011-12 and would comment as follows:
Patient Safety
•

Continued focus on reducing healthcare associated infections

NHS Somerset confirms the data for healthcare acquired infections for 2011-12 is correct.
The Trust is commended for achieving the national target of 28 cases of C difficile acquired
after 48 hours of admission at the year end, with an overall year end position of 23 cases.
This is a considerable achievement and the Trust is commended for the focus given to the
reduction of cases. The Trust did not achieve the national target of no more than one case
of MRSA bloodstream infection, with two cases reported during the year, however there is
significant evidence of continued focus on reducing healthcare associated infections and
learning from incidents to improve care for patients.
•

Ensure 90% of patients are risk assessed for VTE and are appropriately managed for
that risk

The Trust achieved compliance of 91.08% at the end of the year but was challenged in
achieving this position. Audit of patient records did demonstrate that patients were being
given appropriate prophylaxis to prevent VTE; however continued focus will be required to
sustain this position in 2012-13.
•

Reduce avoidable hospital acquired VTE to no more than 5% of all cases

The Trust has made considerable progress in the identification and investigation of hospital
acquired VTE and as such is in a position to report against this indicator. Work will continue
through the local CQUIN framework to reduce the number of patients developing VTE in
hospital.
It is pleasing to see the lessons learned from incidents and complaints, and the actions
taken to improve or change practice as a result, included in the report. Ensuring lessons
are learned from serious untoward incidents and that these are embedded across the Trust
provides evidence of a strong safety culture and focus on improvement. We endorse the
focus on implementation of the World Health Organisations Safety Checklist in relevant
clinical areas and the emphasis on reducing risk to patients.
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Clinical Effectiveness
•

Reduce HSMR by 2.5%

The Trust was reported as an outlier in the Dr Foster Good Hospital Guide with an HSMR
outside of the expected range for similar sized Trusts. The Trust has undertaken detailed
work to understand the position, correct errors in coding and drive improvement in patient
safety work to achieve a reduction. NHS Somerset can confirm that the HSMR has reduced
as a consequence.
•

Review clinical data from Patient Reported Outcome Measures

The Trust is participating in this exercise and has developed a number of local PROMS to
inform the delivery of patient care. Work is identified for 2012-13 to improve on the use of
information gathered from PROMS.
The Trust has participated in a broad number of national audit programmes which provide
assurance of the quality of treatment and care, and the outcomes of care for patients. It is
positive to see the actions being taken in response to the outcomes of participation in
national audits and, in particular, the actions taken for stroke care. This will be an area of
focus for quality monitoring by commissioners during the coming year to ensure that all
stroke patients achieve the best possible outcomes.
NHS Somerset reviews the outcomes of a number of national audits at the quality monitoring
meetings with the Trust, and maintains an overview of the local clinical audit programme.
Patient Experience
•

Ensuring patients have a positive experience whist in our care

The Trust has secured significant improvement in patient reported experience as seen in the
results from the National Surveys of Inpatient and Outpatient services.
•

To improve the care of people with dementia whilst in hospital

The Trust has achieved Level 1 across all 8 standards of the South West Dementia
Partnership Strategy and has made progress in improving the experience of patients with
dementia and their carers. Continued improvement will be sought in 2012-13 with the local
CQUIN requiring the Trust to achieve Level 2 standards by year end.
NHS Somerset will continue to monitor the areas where improvements are required through
the quarterly quality monitoring meetings with the Trust. One of these is improvement in
provision of information to patients and their relatives which is a key issue for continuity of
care and improved outcomes for patients.
Additional Priorities
•

Reduce the number of patient falls across the Trust

NHS Somerset has monitored the progress that the Trust has made during 2011-12 to
reduce the number of falls sustained by patients and can confirm the Trust has achieved a
4% reduction in falls with an outturn of 878 falls in 2011-12. Work continues to reduce the
number of patients falling more than once and those falls which result in the patients
suffering harm.
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•

To reduce the number of hospital acquired pressure sores by 50%

NHS Somerset has welcomed the focus on improving incident reporting across all clinical
areas. In the National Patient Safety Agency Organisation Patient Safety reports for 2011-12
confirm the Trust performance has improved and is now in the mid quartile of performance
for small acute trusts. We welcome the commitment of the Trust to improve the reporting of
patient safety incidents and the introduction of electronic incident reporting has enabled the
Trust to achieve this.
Data Quality
The Trust has continued to make progress in improving data quality. It is important for the
Trust to demonstrate the quality of care provided and for this to be benchmarked against
other NHS providers. With increasing patient choice the provision of high quality data on the
effectiveness and safety of the care provided to patients at Yeovil District Hospital will be
important for patients who choose to have their treatment at the hospital.
Quality Improvement Priorities for 2012-13
NHS Somerset supports the quality improvement priorities identified by the Trust for the
coming year. A number of these priorities have been included in the Continuous Quality and
Innovation framework that we have agreed with the Trust as set out below:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Reducing incidence of hospital acquired VTE
Improving Patient Experience
Implementation of the Safety Thermometer
Earlier diagnosis of dementia
Achievement of Level 2 Standards of the South West Dementia Partnership Strategy
Prudent prescribing of Antipsychotics
Improving end of life care
Improving the identification and management of patients at risk of malnutrition
Implementation of high impact innovations

We can confirm that the Quality Account meets national requirements in respect of content,
provides a balanced view of the Trusts’ achievements and as such is an accurate reflection
of the quality of services provided.
We look forward to continuing to work with Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
during 2012-13 to improve the safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience of the
services provided by the Trust. The quarterly quality monitoring meetings held with the Trust
to review the quality, patient safety and patient experience of services will provide the forum
for this.
2. Comments received from Somerset Council’s Scrutiny Committee
Thank you for sending us your Quality Strategy for comment before publication of your
Quality Account. As you know consideration of “Health” related issues and all health scrutiny
is now undertaken by the Council’s Scrutiny Committee. Your new Quality Strategy, along
with similar documents from other trusts, has been considered by me in my capacity as Vice
Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee and I will report my findings to the Committee at our
next meeting.
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Having considered your Quality Strategy it is clear that within your Trust good practices and
systems are in place and being consistently applied across all healthcare settings. You are
to be commended for consistently delivering against your targets and in many cases
exceeding them. I noted particularly your continuing commitment to caring for your patients
and asking them for their views and comments about their experiences.
Councillors are keen to monitor any impact on Somerset residents and focus the
involvement of the Committee toward improved outcomes for communities in Somerset. Our
24 April meeting will have a dedicated Health themed agenda and the Committee has been
pleased with the assistance and attendance of NHS stakeholders at previous meetings.
As the demands on the public sector increase and the Council continues to develop its
Public Health responsibilities it is committed to build on and enhance the previous good
results achieved through partnership working with the National Health Service
3. Comments from Somerset LINks
Introduction
The Somerset Local Involvement Network (LINk) welcomes the opportunity to comment on
the draft Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report for 2011-12.
The LINk has worked with has continued to work collaboratively with Yeovil District Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust in a number of areas over the past year. Through our Patient Stories
project we have helped to ensure that Yeovil District Hospital is informed of patients’ and
carers’ concerns, compliments and opinions. The Somerset LINk has had representation at
Governors’ meetings, as well as assisting with public consultations and workshops relating
to equality work. The LINk has also met regularly with the Trust as part of the Equality
Delivery System programme of work that is being undertaken across Somerset.
Comment
We note that several surveys of patients from Yeovil District Hospital have shown high levels
of satisfaction with their care. It is also positive that formal commendations received by your
PALS team has increased. It is also reassuring that formal complaints have reduced, and
that the Trust’s timescales in responding to complaints has improved.
It is disappointing that the standards for stroke care were not achieved. We have received
comments over the year from patients who are particularly concerned about stroke care in
general. It is reassuring that the Trust has undertaken work to redress this and improve
stroke care, in addition to working closely with South Petherton Hospital and their stroke
rehabilitation team.
Patient safety has to be a high priority in any hospital. Yeovil District Hospital has not met
several priorities that were set last year and this is extremely concerning. It is disappointing
that the Trust’s targets of reducing the number of falls in hospital, and the harm caused to
patients as a result of these falls, were not met. It is also disappointing that the targets to
reduce pressure sores were not met. We consider that aiming to reduce pressure sores of
grade 2 and above is an inadequate response. This is basic nursing care, and the detection
of pressure problems as early as possible would have preventative benefits.
It is disappointing that the Trust’s overall achievement for both assessment of Venous
thromboembolism (VTE) and cases of avoidable VTE does not meet the national patient
safety quality targets.
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We note that the Patient Safety Incidents reporting continues to increase and again, this is a
matter of concern. It is also concerning that there was a 13% increase in the overall number
of medication incidents reported at Yeovil.
We are pleased to see that a Learning Disability Liaison Nurse has been appointed, in
conjunction with Musgrove Park Hospital. The LINk was involved in the south-west peer
review of Learning Disability Services and the finding that stood out was that patient care for
people with learning disabilities is improved on all counts when a specialist nurse is
available. We welcome this appointment which will no doubt improve patient care for people
with learning disabilities and their families.
Summary
While the Trust has improved its quality standards in some areas, there still remains much to
be done to ensure patient safety, particularly with regards to pressure sores, VTE standards
and falls. These are very basic matters of patient safety and these priorities must be
addressed as a matter of urgency.
4. Comments received from Yeovil District Hospital Board of Governors
The Clinical Governance Assurance Committee and the Patients Experience Committee
invited two governors to each group as observers to their meetings and actively encouraged
them to participate and contribute their views. The governors have been reassured that the
provision of high quality care is a core aim of Yeovil hospital and that appropriate measures
are in place to monitor standards and continuously make improvements wherever possible.
The care of patients with dementia and learning difficulties has been significantly improved
and work continues to disseminate learning about their management throughout the
organisation.
We are also pleased to see the hospital focussing on prevention of pressure sores and
venous thromboembolic disease as important priorities.
The hospital currently has an HSMR which does not accurately reflect the good standards of
care as acknowledged by the CQC and Somerset PCT. The current HSMR is in part the
result of incomplete or inaccurate coding of patient care episodes, which is an essential part
of the record keeping process. This is an historical problem and the hospital is making
urgent improvements in the process to accurately reflect patient care in the data collected.
This has already produced a fall in the HMSR as recorded and this work continues. The
governors are assured that the hospital is committed to achieving an observed HMSR that is
in line with the best hospitals in the country and shows that YDH is a first class healthcare
provider.
The Governors fully support the iCARE philosophy. They are pleased to see that the
organisation has embraced those principles of good care and is making them the foundation
of all that the hospital does.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE QUALITY
REPORT
In preparing this annual quality account the Trust’s Board of Directors has satisfied itself that
the content meets the requirements set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Reporting Manual
2011-12.
The content of the report is consistent with internal and external sources of information,
including:
• Board minutes and papers between April 2011 and March 2012
• Papers relating to quality reported to the Board between April 2011 and March 2012
• Feedback from the Commissioners dated 24 May 2012
• Feedback from the Governors
• Feedback from LINks dated 30 May 2012
• The Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority
Social Services and NHS Complaints Regulation 2009, dated 17.5.2012
• The latest national patient surveys
• The latest national staff survey
• The Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control environment
dated 24 May 2012
• CQC quality and risk profiles April 2011 – April 2012
The quality report presents a balanced picture of the Foundation Trust’s performance over
2011-12. The performance information is reliable and accurate, and there are proper
internal controls over the collection and reporting of the performance measure included in
the Quality Report. These controls are subject to review to confirm that they are working
effectively in practice. The data underpinning the measure of performance reported in the
Quality Report is robust and reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and
prescribed definitions, is subject to scrutiny and review; and the Quality Report has been
prepared in accordance with Monitor’s annual reporting guidance (which incorporated the
Quality Account regulations) as well as the standards to support data quality for the
preparation of the Quality Report.
The directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with
the above requirements in preparing the Quality Report.
By order of the Board

30 May 2012

Peter Wyman, Chairman

30 May 2012

Paul Mears, Chief Executive
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6. Staff Survey
Overall YDH remained in the top 20% of trusts on staff attitudes to work. Of the 38
questions, 11 questions were in the top 20% of Trusts, 10 questions were better than
average, 5 were average, 5 were worse than average and 6 were in the worst category.
Summary of Performance
394 staff at Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust took part in this survey. This is a
response rate of 55% which is in line with the acute trusts in England, and is an increase of
one percentage point on YDH’s 54% response rate in the 2010 survey.
2010-11
Response Rate

Improvement /
Deterioration

2011-12

YDH

National
Average

YDH

National
Average

54%

52%

55%

55%

Improvement

Four Key Findings where staff experiences have improved the most at Yeovil District
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust since the 2009 survey:
•
•
•
•

KF19 Percentage of staff saying hand washing materials are always available.
KF27 Percentage of effective action from employer towards violence and harassment
KF2 Percentage of staff agreeing that their role makes a difference to patients.
KF34 Staff recommendation of the Trust as a place to work or receive treatment

Four scores deteriorated
•
•
•
•

KF23 Percentage of staff experiencing physical violence from patients in the last 12
months
KF32 Staff job satisfaction
KF30 Percentage of staff reporting good communication between senior management
and staff
KF31 Percentage of staff who contribute to improvements at work
2010-11
Top 4 ranking scores
KF19. Percentage of staff saying
hand washing materials are
always available.
KF27. Perceptions of effective
action from employer towards
violence and harassment
KF2. Percentage of staff
agreeing that their role makes a
difference to patients.
KF34. Staff recommendation of
the Trust as a place to work or
receive treatment.

2011-12

Improvement
/ Deterioration

YDH

National
Average

YDH

National
Average

75%

67%

81%

66%

+ 6%

3.73

3.56

3.75

3.58

+ 0.02

88%

90%

94%

90%

+ 6%

3.83

3.52

3.79

3.50

- 0.04
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2010-11
Bottom 4 ranking scores
KF36. Percentage of staff having
equality and diversity training in
last 12 months.
KF8. Percentage of staff working
extra hours.
KF17. Percentage of staff
suffering work-related injury in
last 12 months.
KF23. Percentage of staff
experiencing physical violence
from patients, relatives or the
public in last 12 months.

2011-12

Improvement
/ Deterioration

YDH

National
Average

YDH

National
Average

23%

41%

31%

48%

+ 8%

69%

66%

74%

65%

- 5%

16%

16%

19%

16%

- 3%

6%

8%

10%

8%

- 4%

YDH scored worse than average in five areas and worst in six areas including: staff feeling
they had the ability to contribute towards improvement at work, staff working extra hours,
percentage of staff appraised and with a personal development plan in the last twelve
months, percentage of staff suffering work related stress, the percentage of staff
experiencing physical violence from patients or relatives in the last twelve months, and the
percentage of staff having equality and diversity training in the last twelve months. These
will be areas of focus in the coming year.
The findings will be shared with the Board of Directors and with the clinical divisions. They
will be publicised on the YDH website and will be used to inform recruitment literature. The
areas for improvement will be incorporated in the development of next year’s HR priorities.

7. Other Disclosures
Monitor’s Compliance Framework
Foundation trusts are held to account by the Foundation trust regulator, Monitor. Each year
Monitor sets a range of quality, performance and financial requirements which together form
the Compliance Framework. All trusts are required to make quarterly reports to Monitor
setting out their performance against the Compliance Framework in respect of:
•
•

Financial risk.
Governance risk.

Financial risk is rated on a scale of 1-5, with 5 being the best. From 2010-11 governance
risk was rated Red, Amber/Red, Amber/Green or Green. The tables below compare YDH’s
2011-12 risk ratings against the position in 2010-11.

Financial
risk rating
Governance
risk rating

Annual Plan
2010-11
3

Q1 2010-11

Q2 2010-11

4

Amber/Green Amber/Green
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Q3 2010-11

Q4 2010-11

4

4

4

Green

Green

Green

Financial
risk rating
Governance
risk rating

Annual Plan
2011-12

Q1 2011-12

Q2 2011-12

Q3 2011-12

Q4 2011-12

3

3

3

3

3

Amber/Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Financial Risk
YDH maintained a financial risk rating of 3 throughout the year, delivering its planned surplus
of £1million.
Governance Risk
YDH finished 2010-11 with a Green governance rating and has maintained this rating
throughout the whole of 2011-12. All targets were achieved every quarter, with the
exception of quarter one when there was a very slight under-achievement of the 2 week
target for urgent suspected cancer cases from referral to first outpatient appointment. We
achieved 92.2% against the 93% target. The under-achievement resulted from a significant
increase in demand associated with an increase in referrals to Endoscopy, as a result of a
local cancer awareness campaign. All patients were offered an initial date within the 14-day
standard, but there was not sufficient capacity for those that declined to be given a second
date within the target time.
The table below sets out the detail of our performance against the governance indicators
throughout the year.
Quarter
1

Quarter
2

Quarter
3

Quarter
4

Total

9

4

4

6

23

0

0

1

1

2

Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

93%

92.2%

94.2%

93.3%

94.4%

93%

93.7%

95.0%

97.0%

97.3%

96%

98.8%

98.8%

99.3%

98.0%

98%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Threshold
Quality Standards
Number of cases of Clostridium
29
difficile
Number of MRSA bacteraemias
6
(Monitor de minimis target)
Access to healthcare for people
with a learning disability – Compliant
compliance with CQC standards
Waiting Times
% patients waiting 2 weeks or less
from urgent suspected cancer GP
referral
to
first
outpatient
appointment
% patients waiting 2 weeks or less
from symptomatic breast referral
(cancer not initially suspected)
% patients waiting 31 days or less
from diagnosis to first treatment for
all cancers
% patients waiting 31 days or less
for a second or subsequent cancer
drug treatment
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Waiting Times
% patients waiting 31 days or less
for a second or subsequent cancer
surgical treatment
% patients waiting 62 days or less
from referral to first treatment for all
cancers
% patients waiting 62 days or less
from consultant screening service
referral for all cancers*
Time within which 95 percent of
patients were admitted following
initial referral
Time within which 95 percent of
patients were treated who were not
admitted
Max waiting time of 4 hours in A&E
from arrival to admission, transfer
or discharge.

94%

97.7%

96.2%

100%

100%

85%

88.8%

90.4%

91.8%

92.2%

90%

Not applicable as below the de minimis level

23 weeks

21.5
weeks

21.8
weeks

22.0
weeks

22.5
weeks

18.3
weeks

17.0
weeks

17.4
weeks

17.5
weeks

17.5
weeks

95%

95.0%

97.0%

96.7%

95.1%

* = Monitor sets a minimum of 5 patients per month below which
performance is not assessed
Health and Safety
YDH has made considerable progress over the last 12 months in improving Health and
Safety performance through completing fire risk assessments in all areas, undertaking
simulated fire evacuations in a number of areas and improving access and advice on manual
handling for staff and improving the systems for managing substances hazardous to health
(COSHH).
Occupational Health
YDH provides an occupational health service for all staff and over the past year has been
working closely with managers on vaccinating staff against Flu and supporting managers to
handle sickness absence management in a timely way. The YDH sickness absence rate for
2011 was 3.4%
Sickness Absence
The sickness rate was 3.4%, up 0.2% from last year, but was still among the best within
acute trusts.
Equality, diversity and human rights legislation
YDH meets its obligations set out in the Single Equality Scheme under equality, diversity and
human rights legislation through having an active committed group working to promote
equality and diversity. This is led by the Director of Human Resources and the Director of
Nursing jointly. YDH published its equality and diversity action plan in April 2012 on our
website in line with the legal requirements of the Equality Bill as to make transparent the
work we are doing in this important areas.
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Serious Incidents Involving Data Loss or Confidentiality Breach
There were no such incidents during 2011-12.

8. Statement of the Chief Executive's
responsibilities as the accounting officer of Yeovil
District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
The NHS Act 2006 states that the Chief Executive is the accounting officer of the NHS
foundation trust. The relevant responsibilities of the accounting officer, including their
responsibility for the propriety and regularity of public finances for which they are
answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the NHS Foundation Trust
Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation
Trusts (“Monitor”).
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the basis
set out in the Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust and of its income and expenditure, total recognised gains and losses and cash flows
for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the accounting officer is required to comply with the requirements
of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and in particular to:
•
•
•
•

observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting
and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent
basis;
make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation
Trust Annual Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any
material departures in the financial statements; and
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis

The accounting officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS foundation trust and
to enable him/her to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the
above mentioned Act. The accounting officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the NHS foundation trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set
out in Monitor's NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.

Paul Mears, Chief Executive

30 May 2012
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9. Annual Governance Statement
1. Scope of responsibility
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control
that supports the achievement of the NHS Foundation Trust’s policies, aims and objectives,
whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am personally
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible for
ensuring that the NHS Foundation Trust is administered prudently and economically and that
resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as
set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.
2. The purpose of the system of internal control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of policies, aims and objectives of Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
internal control has been in place in Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for the
year ended 31 March 2012 and up to date of approval of the annual report and accounts.
3. Capacity to handle risk
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has a comprehensive, trustwide system for
managing the risks associated with the achievement of organisational objectives and
compliance with our Terms of Authorisation as a Foundation Trust.
Leadership
As Accounting Officer I have ultimate responsibility for the management of risk. The Board of
Directors, collectively and individually, ensures that appropriate structures and robust
systems of internal control and management are in place.
The Director of Nursing and Clinical Governance is the designated executive director with
Board level accountability for clinical quality and risk management. The Medical Director
supports this role.
The Director of Finance is the designated executive director with Board level accountability
for all other risk, i.e. non-clinical. The Director of Human Resources is the Trust’s designated
executive director for Health and Safety and the Director for Facilities is responsible for
Security.
The Audit Committee, Clinical Governance Assurance Committee and the Non-Clinical Risk
Assurance Committee are the Trust’s strategic risk assurance committees chaired by NonExecutive Directors. Independently they report to the Board of Directors with assurance on
the appropriateness and effectiveness of the Trust’s risk management and internal control
processes.
The Hospital Management Team (HMT) is the Trust’s operational risk management
committee. HMT is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors with corporate Directors and
Divisional Directors providing the leadership for management of risk. Divisional Directors,
supported by Divisional General Managers and Associate Directors of Nursing, are
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responsible for managing risk which is cascaded down through the Divisional structure. In all
non-clinical departments, the appropriate director is responsible for managing risk through
the chain of reporting. Within each department, matrons, ward sisters and heads of
department are responsible for managing risk.
The Trust has a designated Risk Manager within the Clinical Governance Department and
individual risk advisors have been appointed to provide specialist advice and guidance on
particular matters and have been designated as competent persons.
Risk sub committees support the risk management process reporting through responsible
directors to HMT and the Board of Directors.
Training
Capacity and capability is developed across the Trust through an in-house programme of
risk management training which is designed to equip staff with the necessary skills to enable
them to identify and effectively manage risk.
Aspects of risk awareness are part of the Trust induction programme for all new employees.
Induction and mandatory training arrangements are strongly risk-focussed. Managers at all
levels have training provided in risk management and the Board of Directors have risk
management awareness and briefing sessions built into their agenda.
The Trust presents learning from national and internal reports and from external and internal
investigations at the Board of Directors. Incident reporting supports the risk management
approach and the integrated software system allows staff to report incidents openly with
training and support provided. Learning from incidents, complaints and claims is presented
through the Clinical Governance Delivery Committee which supports the risk management
approach. This learning is cascaded out through monthly governance meetings which take
place within the divisions and departments and quarterly trust wide multi professional
learning sessions are held.
4. The risk and control framework
The Board of Directors has approved a Risk Management Strategy which underpins the
Clinical Quality Strategy. The risk management approach of setting objectives; identifying,
analysing, prioritising and managing risk is embedded throughout the Trust.
In accordance with Department of Health guidance, the Trust has identified its strategic
objectives. It has also identified its principal risks in relation to these objectives and
compliance with the Care Quality Commission requirements. The relevant controls,
management assurances and independent assurances are mapped to each risk in the
Assurance Framework.
The Trust has a Quality Strategy aimed at achieving excellence in clinical care. Quality
Accounts have been prepared which set out the progress made in areas of patient safety,
clinical outcomes and patient experience. The Quality Strategy has been approved by the
Board of Directors with work streams that have been followed through the NHS Southwest
Quality Improvement and Patient Safety programme. Data in the form of metrics have been
received monthly by the Board of Directors.
Risk management takes place at department level with risks fed through to the risk register
via the Trust Risk Manager. The responsibility for managing risks is in accordance with the
prioritisation and thresholds set out in the risk management policy. Clinical divisions review
and assess their significant risks via the management business meetings and Divisions
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through their monthly rolling governance meetings. The corporate directors led by the Chief
Executive meet quarterly with the divisional management team to review progress against
their plans and to review key areas of risk and ensure that mitigating actions are in place.
The Trust has one corporate risk register which includes all divisional and departmental risks
identified through the risk management approach. Managers take action and review their
risks in line with the review date set in the risk register. The Board of Directors look to the
future, identifying risks most likely to impact on objectives and service delivery which are
included in the Assurance Framework.
The Trust has established a regular review process for both the risk register and the
Assurance Framework. This enables Audit, Clinical Governance and Non-Clinical Risk
Assurance Committees to review and monitor assurances that systems and processes are in
place to manage risk. The Board of Directors and the Hospital Management Team review
high priority risks in the risk register at least three times per year. The Board of Directors
review the Assurance Framework overview and status at each board meeting; these are
informed by directors and chairs of the assurance committees.
To enable the Trust to ensure compliance with Care Quality Commission (CQC) registration
the assurance committees review the Quality and Risk Profile (QRP) alongside the
Assurance Framework. During 2011/12 the Trust introduced a software system to support
and gather evidence in the form of a Compliance Provider Assessment (CPA) tool to enable
the trust to manage and monitor the evidence to demonstrate compliance. Both the QRP
and the CPA have been reviewed by the Board of Directors.
Data Security
Risks to information, including data security are managed through the Information
Governance Steering Group reporting to the Board of Directors with the Non Clinical Risk
Assurance Committee monitoring assurances against policy and standards. The Senior
Information Risk Owner for the Trust is the Director of Planning and Performance.
A register of information assets is maintained and data security risks have been identified
and action is taken to manage and mitigate risks including staff training, data encryption,
physical and network security measures and access controls. All current measures are
frequently reviewed and updated where necessary in response to the rapidly evolving IT
environment. The Information Governance Toolkit remains an essential tool in monitoring
progress against national standards and a comprehensive assessment of information
security is undertaken annually as part of this process.
Our Major Risks
In 2011-12 the Trust has taken a range of actions to support both ongoing assurance and
specific actions to reduce risk; examples being:
•

Recruiting Emergency Department consultants to reduce the amount of dependence
on locum consultants in order to deliver a high standard of emergency services.

•

Implementing security management arrangements through establishing the role of a
security officer and a Local Security Management Specialist.

•

Developing business continuity planning arrangements to ensure robust plans are in
place and tested.
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•

Improving emergency preparedness arrangements and resilience planning.

•

Strengthening medical devices management arrangements including delivering a
medical devices library and equipment tracking procedures.

The Trust revised its clinical services strategy and has set in place a service transformation
programme to deliver the future services of the Trust.
Risks faced in information technology with ageing patient administration and dictation
systems have been highlighted in-year. The information management and technology
(IM&T) strategy has been developed and agreed by the Board of Directors to set in place
priorities including implementing the electronic health record.
The Trust has also been active in managing clinical risks including preventing pressure
ulcers developed in hospital; reducing the number of patient falls; assessing patients for risk
of venous thrombo-embolism and ensuring 90% of stroke patients receive treatment on the
stroke ward. The Trust has been acting to reduce the Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio
(HSMR) reported through Dr Foster Intelligence. A number of activities have been taken
including reducing the number of consultant episodes of care and improving identification
and coding of co-morbidities. These clinical risks and others form part of the on-going
clinical quality monitoring processes reported through governance arrangements.
The Foundation Trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality
Commission.
The Trust received an unannounced visit from the Care Quality Commission in September
2011 as part of their routine schedule of planned reviews. The Trust was judged to be
compliant in all six areas of outcomes reviewed. A further unannounced inspection took
place in March 2012. This review was part of a national review of all organisations providing
termination of pregnancy services. Initial feedback suggested no areas of un-managed risk,
but the final report is awaited.
Public stakeholder involvement in risk management
There are close working relationships between the Trust and its key public stakeholders, e.g.
Governors, Monitor, NHS Somerset and NHS Dorset. Where specific issues arise these are
addressed on a partnership basis through ongoing dialogue, consensus and mutual support.
As part of the Trust’s Patient and Public Involvement initiative there are user representatives
on the Clinical Governance Delivery Committee and a number of other risk sub-committees.
Governors sit on each of the assurance committee meetings and participate in the
functioning of these committees. In 2011/12 a Governor was invited to sit on the Board of
Directors as an observer.
Compliance with NHS Pensions Scheme regulations
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pensions Scheme, control
measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme
regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary,
employer’s contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme
rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with
the timescales detailed in the Regulations.
Equality, diversity and human rights legislation
The Trust meets its obligations against the Equality Act 2010 through having an active
committed group working to promote equality and diversity. This is led by the Director of
Human Resources with involvement of Governors and representation from the Somerset
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Racial Equality Council. The group has progressed with streams of work set out in the goals
and outcomes against the Equality Delivery System (EDS) and participates fully in the
Somerset EDS Cluster Group.
Environment
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon
Reduction Delivery Plans are in place in accordance with emergency preparedness and civil
contingency requirements, as based on UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure that this
organisation’s obligations under the Climate Change Act and the Adaption Reporting
requirements are complied with.
5. Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources
The Trust has developed a comprehensive top-level performance metric to provide a
dashboard of key indicators. This is reviewed monthly by the Board of Directors and by the
Hospital Management Team. In addition, monthly reports on Clinical Governance, Service
delivery, Finance, Human Resources, Estates and Facilities and Planning and Performance
are received by both committees.
During the year the Trust has followed a system of quarterly performance reviews for the
clinical divisions to enhance the system of management and review and identify any
performance or quality issues at an early stage.
A subgroup of the Hospital Management Team reviews all business cases for approval of
funding for developments against economy, efficiency and affordability.
Internal Audit work provides assurances on internal controls, risk management and
governance systems reported to the Assurance Committees through to the Board of
Directors.
6. Annual Quality Report
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service
(Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality Accounts for each
financial year. Monitor has issued guidance to NHS Foundation Trust boards on the form
and content of annual Quality Reports which incorporate the above legal requirements in the
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.
The Board of Directors receive monthly reports providing an overview of the quality of
services provided to ensure the accuracy of data throughout the year. This information is
also reviewed by divisional quarterly meetings and at departmental governance meetings.
The three assurance committees are chaired by Non-Executive Directors (NEDs), who are
responsible for seeking assurance about the quality of care provided, use of resources
through data analysed throughout the year.
The assurance committees have terms of reference to guide their work, and data is
triangulated from dashboard metrics and qualitative information provided in the clinical
governance report. Staff from specific areas attend the Non Clinical Risk Assurance
Committee and Clinical Governance Assurance Committee to provide an opportunity for
NEDs and Governors to question them about their service and to allow debate about risks
faced by the teams.
Clinical governance arrangements are in place for monitoring the quality of care provided
from a variety of sources. Audits and data collection take place against the quality measures,
63

patient reported outcome measures (PROM’s) and participation in the NHS South West
Quality and Patient Safety Improvement programme are some of the systems used for
monitoring against quality metrics. External sources of information are used to inform the
quality reports, including the Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR) data from Dr
Foster Intelligence, NHS Litigation Authority risk reports and regional benchmark data.
Data is provided to the divisional teams by staff trained and experienced in data analysis.
The data quality group led by the Director of Planning and Performance ensures the
validation of data which supports information governance arrangements.
There are policies in place to guide management of systems, including, but not exclusively,
complaints, incident reporting, audit, infection prevention and control and litigation claims.
External assurance is gained through the annual Internal Audit programme and by the work
of the External auditors.
7. Review of effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. My review of the effectiveness of the system on internal control is informed
by the work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive managers and clinical
leads within the NHS Foundation Trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework. I have drawn on the content of the quality
report attached to this Annual report and other performance information available to me. My
review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their management
letter and other reports.
I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control by the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, Clinical
Governance Assurance Committee and the Non-Clinical Risk Assurance Committee and a
plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.
The process for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control
has been in accordance with the Trust’s Risk Management Policy. This provides for clear
structures and processes for risk management, and for distinct arrangements for providing
internal and external assurance on the effectiveness of this system.
The Hospital Management Team is the Trust’s operational risk management committee
which is informed by the divisional management teams, the Clinical Governance Delivery
Committee and Directors’ reporting. The Audit Committee, Clinical Governance Assurance
Committee and Non-Clinical Risk Assurance Committee provide the assurance element of
the system of internal control.
The Assurance Committees jointly undertake reviews of the Assurance Framework in
respect of their assigned risk review areas, reporting directly to the Board of Directors.
The internal audit programme is set against the principal risks developed at the start of
2011/12. This process, in conjunction with reviews of the Assurance Framework has put in
place a robust review mechanism for setting and reviewing principal risks. Audit reports are
reported in a timely manner to their respective assurance committees for review and
monitoring.
The Trust received a number of internal audit reports during the year which identified issues
to be addressed. The majority of the recommendations either have been implemented or are
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in progress for implementation and assurances have been received that systems are in
place to ensure these are completed.
The Clinical Governance Delivery Committee monitor clinical audits and data presented
through work streams to review the effectiveness of the quality strategy in order to produce
the quality accounts. No significant weaknesses have been found through this process. This
has led the Committee to conclude it has no serious shortcomings in its system of internal
controls thus representing a low risk profile for the organisation.
8. Conclusion
I am satisfied that effective systems are in place to manage risk and that the culture of risk
management is embedded across the Trust and at every level in the management structure.
There are no significant internal control issues which have been identified during the course
of the year or in relation to this year-end statement.

Paul Mears, Chief Executive

30 May 2012

10. Annual Sustainability Report 2011-12
The Government has set carbon reduction targets which YDH is required to measure and
report on. This is of benefit to us as a reduction in carbon emissions can result in not just
financial savings from energy use but from the goods and services we procure and our travel
and waste costs. These savings can be redirected back into patient care and health
promotion.
YDH’s Sustainability and Carbon Management Strategy was approved by the Board of
Directors in October 2009 and reviewed in June 2011.
Several initiatives are planned including:
•
•

Encouraging staff to save energy and switch off lighting and equipment. “Green Day”
staff awareness events were held in November 2010 and 2011 and this year’s is
planned for June 2012
An Energy Project is under way to review and upgrade our heating and hot water
systems

Several initiatives have already been completed and these include:
•
•

Recycling has continued to increase under the new waste contract
The Combined Heat and Power plant went live in August 2011 and has already
generated considerable savings against our electricity consumption
65

•
•
•
•

The replacement of hot water storage with plate heat exchangers was completed in
March 2012
Our Green Travel Plan is complete
Display Energy Certificates (DECs) are shown at hospital entrances
A process is in place for establishing and monitoring YDH’s annual carbon footprint

Our Sustainability Key Performance Indicators
Non-financial Data
Area

Waste
minimisation

Finite
resources

Financial Data (£)

Description
Unit

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

Tonnes

401.05

467.9

497.7

127,900

131,724

120,860

Total Recycled

%

6.0

26.85

26.02

8,600

6,923

9,661

Water

m3

54,204

68,840

82,950

151,134

165,575*

254,959

Electricity

GJ

21,565

21,216*

16,683

492,941

460,564*

451,184

Gas

GJ

47,469

52,345

54,658

278,963

284,041*

465,059

Oil

GJ

135

3,013

179

16,528

18,024

4,134

Tonnes

5,095

5,905

5,347

-

-

-

Total Waste

CO 2 emissions

66
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Statement of the Chief Executive’s responsibilities as the Accounting Officer of
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
The NHS Act 2006 states that the Chief Executive is the Accounting Officer of the NHS Foundation Trust.
The relevant responsibilities of the Accounting Officer, including their responsibility for the propriety and
regularity of public finances for which they are answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set
out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by the Independent Regulator of
NHS Foundation Trusts (“Monitor”).
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust to prepare
for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts
Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and expenditure, total
recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the requirements of the NHS
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and in particular to:
•

Observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;

•

Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis

•

State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the
financial statements; and

•

Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
and to enable him to ensure that the accounts comply with the requirements outlined in the above
mentioned Act. The Accounting Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Yeovil
District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and hence for taking any reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in Monitor’s
NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officers’ Memorandum.
Signed

Paul Mears– Chief Executive
Date: 24 May 2012
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Accounts
The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts for each
financial year. The Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts, Monitor, with the approval of the
Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the Foundation Trust’s gains and losses,
cash flows and financial state at the end of the financial year.
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant information of which the Trust’s auditors are
unaware. The directors have taken all steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant information and to establish that the Trust’s auditors are aware of that
information.

Signed on behalf of the board:

Paul Mears– Chief Executive
Date: 24 May 2012
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Annual Governance Statement
1.

Scope of responsibility

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that
supports the achievement of the NHS Foundation Trust’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst
safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am personally responsible, in
accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible for ensuring that the NHS
Foundation Trust is administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently
and effectively. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting
Officer Memorandum.
2.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of policies, aims and objectives of Yeovil
District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system
of internal control has been in place in Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended
31 March 2012 and up to date of approval of the annual report and accounts.
3.

Capacity to handle risk

Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has a comprehensive, trustwide system for managing the
risks associated with the achievement of organisational objectives and compliance with our Terms of
Authorisation as a Foundation Trust.
Leadership
As Accounting Officer I have ultimate responsibility for the management of risk. The Board of Directors,
collectively and individually, ensures that appropriate structures and robust systems of internal control and
management are in place.
The Director of Nursing and Clinical Governance is the designated executive director with Board level
accountability for clinical quality and risk management. The Medical Director supports this role.
The Director of Finance is the designated executive director with Board level accountability for all other
risk, i.e. non-clinical. The Director of Human Resources is the Trust’s designated executive director for
Health and Safety and the Director for Facilities is responsible for Security.
The Audit Committee, Clinical Governance Assurance Committee and the Non-Clinical Risk Assurance
Committee are the Trust’s strategic risk assurance committees chaired by Non-Executive Directors.
Independently they report to the Board of Directors with assurance on the appropriateness and
effectiveness of the Trust’s risk management and internal control processes.
The Hospital Management Team (HMT) is the Trust’s operational risk management committee. HMT is a
sub-committee of the Board of Directors with corporate Directors and Divisional Directors providing the
leadership for management of risk. Divisional Directors, supported by Divisional General Managers and
Associate Directors of Nursing, are responsible for managing risk which is cascaded down through the
Divisional structure. In all non-clinical departments, the appropriate director is responsible for managing
risk through the chain of reporting. Within each department, matrons, ward sisters and heads of
department are responsible for managing risk.
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The Trust has a designated Risk Manager within the Clinical Governance Department and individual risk
advisors have been appointed to provide specialist advice and guidance on particular matters and have
been designated as competent persons.
Risk sub committees support the risk management process reporting through responsible directors to
HMT and the Board of Directors.
Training
Capacity and capability is developed across the Trust through an in-house programme of risk
management training which is designed to equip staff with the necessary skills to enable them to identify
and effectively manage risk.
Aspects of risk awareness are part of the Trust induction programme for all new employees. Induction and
mandatory training arrangements are strongly risk-focussed. Managers at all levels have training provided
in risk management and the Board of Directors have risk management awareness and briefing sessions
built into their agenda.
The Trust presents learning from national and internal reports and from external and internal
investigations at the Board of Directors. Incident reporting supports the risk management approach and
the integrated software system allows staff to report incidents openly with training and support provided.
Learning from incidents, complaints and claims is presented through the Clinical Governance Delivery
Committee which supports the risk management approach. This learning is cascaded out through monthly
governance meetings which take place within the divisions and departments and quarterly trust wide multi
professional learning sessions are held.
4.

The risk and control framework

The Board of Directors has approved a Risk Management Strategy which underpins the Clinical Quality
Strategy. The risk management approach of setting objectives; identifying, analysing, prioritising and
managing risk is embedded throughout the Trust.
In accordance with Department of Health guidance, the Trust has identified its strategic objectives. It has
also identified its principal risks in relation to these objectives and compliance with the Care Quality
Commission requirements. The relevant controls, management assurances and independent assurances
are mapped to each risk in the Assurance Framework.
The Trust has a Quality Strategy aimed at achieving excellence in clinical care. Quality Accounts have
been prepared which set out the progress made in areas of patient safety, clinical outcomes and patient
experience. The Quality Strategy has been approved by the Board of Directors with work streams that
have been followed through the NHS Southwest Quality Improvement and Patient Safety programme.
Data in the form of metrics have been received monthly by the Board of Directors.
Risk management takes place at department level with risks fed through to the risk register via the Trust
Risk Manager. The responsibility for managing risks is in accordance with the prioritisation and thresholds
set out in the risk management policy. Clinical divisions review and assess their significant risks via the
management business meetings and Divisions through their monthly rolling governance meetings. The
corporate directors led by the Chief Executive meet quarterly with the divisional management team to
review progress against their plans and to review key areas of risk and ensure that mitigating actions are
in place.
The Trust has one corporate risk register which includes all divisional and departmental risks identified
through the risk management approach. Managers take action and review their risks in line with the review
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date set in the risk register. The Board of Directors look to the future, identifying risks most likely to impact
on objectives and service delivery which are included in the Assurance Framework.
The Trust has established a regular review process for both the risk register and the Assurance
Framework. This enables Audit, Clinical Governance and Non-Clinical Risk Assurance Committees to
review and monitor assurances that systems and processes are in place to manage risk. The Board of
Directors and the Hospital Management Team review high priority risks in the risk register at least three
times per year. The Board of Directors review the Assurance Framework overview and status at each
board meeting; these are informed by directors and chairs of the assurance committees.
To enable the Trust to ensure compliance with Care Quality Commission (CQC) registration the
assurance committees review the Quality and Risk Profile (QRP) alongside the Assurance Framework.
During 2011/12 the Trust introduced a software system to support and gather evidence in the form of a
Compliance Provider Assessment (CPA) tool to enable the trust to manage and monitor the evidence to
demonstrate compliance. Both the QRP and the CPA have been reviewed by the Board of Directors.
Data Security
Risks to information, including data security are managed through the Information Governance Steering
Group reporting to the Board of Directors with the Non Clinical Risk Assurance Committee monitoring
assurances against policy and standards. The Senior Information Risk Owner for the Trust is the Director
of Planning and Performance.
A register of information assets is maintained and data security risks have been identified and action is
taken to manage and mitigate risks including staff training, data encryption, physical and network security
measures and access controls. All current measures are frequently reviewed and updated where
necessary in response to the rapidly evolving IT environment. The Information Governance Toolkit
remains an essential tool in monitoring progress against national standards and a comprehensive
assessment of information security is undertaken annually as part of this process.
Our Major Risks
In 2011/12 the Trust has taken a range of actions to support both ongoing assurance and specific actions
to reduce risk; examples being:
•

Recruiting Emergency Department consultants to reduce the amount of dependence on locum
consultants in order to deliver a high standard of emergency services.

•

Implementing security management arrangements through establishing the role of a security
officer and a Local Security Management Specialist.

•

Developing business continuity planning arrangements to ensure robust plans are in place and
tested.

•

Improving emergency preparedness arrangements and resilience planning.

•

Strengthening medical devices management arrangements including delivering a medical devices
library and equipment tracking procedures.

The Trust revised its clinical services strategy and has set in place a service transformation programme to
deliver the future services of the Trust.
Risks faced in information technology with ageing patient administration and dictation systems have been
highlighted in-year. The information management and technology (IM&T) strategy has been developed

Page 6

YEOVIL DISTRICT HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST – ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2011/12

and agreed by the Board of Directors to set in place priorities including implementing the electronic health
record.
The Trust has also been active in managing clinical risks including preventing pressure ulcers developed
in hospital; reducing the number of patient falls; assessing patients for risk of venous thrombo-embolism
and ensuring 90% of stroke patients receive treatment on the stroke ward. The Trust has been acting to
reduce the Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR) reported through Dr Foster Intelligence. A
number of activities have been taken including reducing the number of consultant episodes of care and
improving identification and coding of co-morbidities. These clinical risks and others form part of the ongoing clinical quality monitoring processes reported through governance arrangements.
The Foundation Trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commission.
The Trust received an unannounced visit from the Care Quality Commission in September 2011 as part of
their routine schedule of planned reviews. The Trust was judged to be compliant in all six areas of
outcomes reviewed. A further unannounced inspection took place in March 2012. This review was part of
a national review of all organisations providing termination of pregnancy services. Initial feedback
suggested no areas of un-managed risk, but the final report is awaited.
Public stakeholder involvement in risk management
There are close working relationships between the Trust and its key public stakeholders, e.g. Governors,
Monitor, NHS Somerset and NHS Dorset. Where specific issues arise these are addressed on a
partnership basis through ongoing dialogue, consensus and mutual support. As part of the Trust’s Patient
and Public Involvement initiative there are user representatives on the Clinical Governance Delivery
Committee and a number of other risk sub-committees. Governors sit on each of the assurance committee
meetings and participate in the functioning of these committees. In 2011/12 a Governor was invited to sit
on the Board of Directors as an observer.
Compliance with NHS Pensions Scheme regulations
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pensions Scheme, control measures are in
place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme regulations are complied with. This
includes ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s contributions and payments into the Scheme
are in accordance with the Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately
updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.
Equality, diversity and human rights legislation
The Trust meets its obligations against the Equality Act 2010 through having an active committed group
working to promote equality and diversity. This is led by the Director of Human Resources with
involvement of Governors and representation from the Somerset Racial Equality Council. The group has
progressed with streams of work set out in the goals and outcomes against the Equality Delivery System
(EDS) and participates fully in the Somerset EDS Cluster Group.

Environment
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction
Delivery Plans are in place in accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency
requirements, as based on UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure that this organisation’s obligations
under the Climate Change Act and the Adaption Reporting requirements are complied with.
5.

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources

The Trust has developed a comprehensive top-level performance metric to provide a dashboard of key
indicators. This is reviewed monthly by the Board of Directors and by the Hospital Management Team. In
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addition, monthly reports on Clinical Governance, Service delivery, Finance, Human Resources, Estates
and Facilities and Planning and Performance are received by both committees.
During the year the Trust has followed a system of quarterly performance reviews for the clinical divisions
to enhance the system of management and review and identify any performance or quality issues at an
early stage.
A subgroup of the Hospital Management Team reviews all business cases for approval of funding for
developments against economy, efficiency and affordability.
Internal Audit work provides assurances on internal controls, risk management and governance systems
reported to the Assurance Committees through to the Board of Directors.
6.

Annual Quality Report

The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts)
Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year. Monitor has issued
guidance to NHS Foundation Trust boards on the form and content of annual Quality Reports which
incorporate the above legal requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.
The Board of Directors receive monthly reports providing an overview of the quality of services provided to
ensure the accuracy of data throughout the year. This information is also reviewed by divisional quarterly
meetings and at departmental governance meetings. The three assurance committees are chaired by
Non-Executive Directors (NEDs), who are responsible for seeking assurance about the quality of care
provided, use of resources through data analysed throughout the year.
The assurance committees have terms of reference to guide their work, and data is triangulated from
dashboard metrics and qualitative information provided in the clinical governance report. Staff from
specific areas attend the Non Clinical Risk Assurance Committee and Clinical Governance Assurance
Committee to provide an opportunity for NEDs and Governors to question them about their service and to
allow debate about risks faced by the teams.
Clinical governance arrangements are in place for monitoring the quality of care provided from a variety of
sources. Audits and data collection take place against the quality measures, patient reported outcome
measures (PROM’s) and participation in the NHS South West Quality and Patient Safety Improvement
programme are some of the systems used for monitoring against quality metrics. External sources of
information are used to inform the quality reports, including the Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio
(HSMR) data from Dr Foster Intelligence, NHS Litigation Authority risk reports and regional benchmark
data.
Data is provided to the divisional teams by staff trained and experienced in data analysis. The data quality
group led by the Director of Planning and Performance ensures the validation of data which supports
information governance arrangements.
There are policies in place to guide management of systems, including, but not exclusively, complaints,
incident reporting, audit, infection prevention and control and litigation claims.
External assurance is gained through the annual Internal Audit programme and by the work of the
External auditors.
7.

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. My review of the effectiveness of the system on internal control is informed by the work of the
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internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive managers and clinical leads within the NHS Foundation
Trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework. I
have drawn on the content of the quality report attached to this Annual report and other performance
information available to me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in
their management letter and other reports.
I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control by the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, Clinical Governance Assurance
Committee and the Non-Clinical Risk Assurance Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and
ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.
The process for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control has been in
accordance with the Trust’s Risk Management Policy. This provides for clear structures and processes for
risk management, and for distinct arrangements for providing internal and external assurance on the
effectiveness of this system.
The Hospital Management Team is the Trust’s operational risk management committee which is informed
by the divisional management teams, the Clinical Governance Delivery Committee and Directors’
reporting. The Audit Committee, Clinical Governance Assurance Committee and Non-Clinical Risk
Assurance Committee provide the assurance element of the system of internal control.
The Assurance Committees jointly undertake reviews of the Assurance Framework in respect of their
assigned risk review areas, reporting directly to the Board of Directors.
The internal audit programme is set against the principal risks developed at the start of 2011/12. This
process, in conjunction with reviews of the Assurance Framework has put in place a robust review
mechanism for setting and reviewing principal risks. Audit reports are reported in a timely manner to their
respective assurance committees for review and monitoring.
The Trust received a number of internal audit reports during the year which identified issues to be
addressed. The majority of the recommendations either have been implemented or are in progress for
implementation and assurances have been received that systems are in place to ensure these are
completed.
The Clinical Governance Delivery Committee monitor clinical audits and data presented
streams to review the effectiveness of the quality strategy in order to produce the quality
significant weaknesses have been found through this process. This has led the Committee
has no serious shortcomings in its system of internal controls thus representing a low risk
organisation.
8.

through work
accounts. No
to conclude it
profile for the

Conclusion

I am satisfied that effective systems are in place to manage risk and that the culture of risk management is
embedded across the Trust and at every level in the management structure. There are no significant
internal control issues which have been identified during the course of the year or in relation to this yearend statement.

Signed
Paul Mears, Chief Executive
24 May 2012
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FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS
These accounts for the year ended 31 March 2012 have been prepared by Yeovil District Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 to the National Health Service
Act 2006 in the form in which Monitor, the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts, with the
approval of the Treasury, has directed.
Signed:

Paul Mears– Chief Executive
Date 24 May 2012
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2012
Note

2011/12
£'000

2010/11
restated
£'000

Operating Income from continuing operations

3

109,077

106,638

Operating Expenses of continuing operations

6.1

(106,648)

(105,718)

2,429

920

OPERATING SURPLUS
FINANCE COSTS
Finance income

10

66

70

Finance expense - unwinding of discount on
provisions

20

(17)

(19)

(1,681)

(1,644)

(1,632)

(1,593)

797

(673)

15.1

(237)

2,781

28

30

0

590

2,108

PDC Dividends payable
NET FINANCE COSTS
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income
Revaluation gains and impairment losses property, plant and equipment
Public dividend capital received
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR

Please note the trusts reported outturn of £797,000 has been impacted by changes in the accounting
treatment of donated assets and the posting of impairments. The items have been reconciled to the Trust
underlying financial performance of £995,000 within the operating and financial review of the annual
report.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2012
Note

31-Mar-2012
£'000

31-Mar-2011
Restated
£'000

01-Apr-2010
Restated
£'000

Non current assets
Intangible Assets

14.1

286

58

45

Property, plant and equipment

15.1

52,141

52,647

49,094

Trade and other receivables

18.1

709

685

727

53,136

53,390

49,866

17

1,629

1,645

1,778

Trade and other receivables

18.1

3,580

3,439

3,574

Non current assets held for sale

15.4

184

0

0

24

6,118

5,046

8,068

11,511

10,130

13,420

Total non current assets
Current assets
Inventories

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

19

(7,641)

(7,054)

(9,205)

Borrowings

21

(128)

(128)

0

Provisions

20

(86)

(94)

(182)

0

0

(63)

Total current liabilities

(7,855)

(7,276)

(9,450)

Total assets less current liabilities

56,792

56,244

53,836

Other liabilities

Non current liabilities
Borrowings

21

(191)

(319)

0

Provisions

20

(766)

(680)

(699)

(957)

(999)

(699)

55,835

55,245

53,137

40,625

40,595

40,595

Revaluation reserve

9,371

9,646

6,867

Income and expenditure reserve

5,839

5,004

5,675

55,835

55,245

53,137

Total non current liabilities
Total assets employed
Financed by (taxpayers' equity)
Public Dividend Capital

28

Total taxpayers' equity

The Annual Accounts were formally approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf by:

Paul Mears – Chief Executive
24 May 2011
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY
Total

Public
Dividend
Capital

Revaluation
Reserve

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve

£'000
55,245

£'000
40,595

£'000
9,646

£'000
5,004

797

0

0

797

(237)

0

(237)

0

Transfer to the income and expenditure
account in respect of assets disposed of

0

0

(38)

38

Increase in the donated asset reserve due
to receipt of donated assets

0

0

0

0

Public Dividend Capital received

30

30

0

0

Other transfers between reserves

0

0

0

0

Movements on other reserves

0

0

0

0

590

30

(275)

835

55,835

40,625

9,371

5,839

Taxpayers' Equity at 1 April 2011
Surplus for the year

Revaluation gains/(losses) and impairment
losses property, plant and equipment

Total Comprehensive income for the year
Taxpayers' Equity at 31 March 2012
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY (restated)
Total

Public
Dividend
Capital

Revaluation
Reserve

Donated
Assets
Reserve

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

52,899

40,595

6,505

1,723

4,076

238

0

362

(1,723)

1,599

53,137

40,595

6,867

0

5,675

Surplus for the year

(673)

0

0

0

(673)

Revaluation gains/(losses) and impairment
losses property, plant and equipment

2,781

0

2,781

0

0

Transfer to the income and expenditure
account in respect of assets disposed of

0

0

(2)

0

2

Other transfers between reserves

0

0

0

0

0

Movements on other reserves

0

0

0

0

0

2,108

0

2,779

0

(671)

55,245

40,595

9,646

0

5,004

Taxpayers' Equity at 1 April 2010 as
previously stated
Prior period adjustment (note 1.23)

Taxpayers' Equity at 1 April 2010 - restated

Total Comprehensive income for the year
Taxpayers' Equity at 31 March 2011
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2012
2011/12
£'000

2010/11
£'000

23

6,794

4,093

10

66

70

Payments to acquire intangible assets

14.1

(247)

(23)

Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets

15.1

(3,692)

(5,999)

(3,873)

(5,952)

30

0

0

511

(128)

(64)

PDC Dividends paid

(1,751)

(1,610)

Net cash used in financing activies

(1,849)

(1,163)

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

1,072

(3,022)

Cash and Cash equivalents at 1 April

5,046

8,068

Cash and Cash equivalents at 31 March

6,118

5,046

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash generated from operations
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Public Dividend Capital received

28

Loans received
Loans repaid

21
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1

Accounting policies and other information
Monitor has directed that the financial statements of NHS foundation trusts shall meet the
accounting requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual which shall be
agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the 2011/12 NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual
issued by Monitor. The accounting policies contained in that manual follow International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual to the
extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS foundation trusts. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to
the accounts.

1.1

Accounting Convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account
for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain
financial assets and financial liabilities.
The financial results of Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Funds have
been excluded from consolidation in line with accounting direction issued by Monitor, which
provides dispensation to the application of IAS 27 (revised) gor the accounting period ending
31 March 2012.

1.2

Income
Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance
occurs and is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of
income for the trust is contracts with commissioners in respect of healthcare services.
Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in the following
financial year, that income is deferred.
Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of
sale have been met, and is measured as the sums due under the sale contract.

1.3

Expenditure on Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee Benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the
service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned but not taken
by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent
that employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following period.
Pension costs
NHS Pension Scheme
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The
scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, general practices
and other bodies, allowed under the direction of Secretary of State, in England and Wales. It is
not possible for the NHS foundation trust to identify its share of the underlying scheme
liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme.
Employers pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they
become due.
Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme

Page 18

YEOVIL DISTRICT HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST – ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2011/12

except where the retirement is due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional
costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time the trust commits itself to the retirement,
regardless of the method of payment.
1.4

Expenditure on other goods and services
Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been
received, and is measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is
recognised in operating expenses except where it results in the creation of a non-current asset
such as property, plant and equipment.

1.5

Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition
Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised where:
•

it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

•

it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided
to, the Trust;

•

it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;

•

the cost of the item can be measured reliably;

•

the cost of the individual asset is at least £5,000;

•

the items form a group of assets which individually have a cost of at least £250,
collectively have a cost of at least £5,000, where the assets are functionally
interdependent, they broadly have simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to
have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control; and

•

the items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building or
refurbishment of a ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with
significantly different asset lives e.g. plant and equipment, then these components are treated
as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

Measurement
Valuation
All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs
directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
All assets are measured subsequently at fair value.
Land and property assets are valued 5 yearly with a 3 yearly interim valuation also carried out.
Annual impairment reviews are carried out in other years. The 5 yearly and 3 yearly interim
revaluations are carried out by a professionally qualified valuer in accordance with the Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual. The valuations are
carried out on the basis of a Modern Equivalent Asset as required by HM Treasury. The annual
reviews are conducted using the most appropriate information available at the date of the
review. A revaluation was carried out as at 31 March 2010.
Equipment assets values are reviewed annually by internal experts to determine the remaining
life based on past and forecasted consumption of the economic useful life of the asset.
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Assets in the course of construction are valued at current cost. They are valued by professional
valuers when they are first brought into use and are subsequently valued as part of the five or
three yearly valuations.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as
an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future
economic benefits or service potential deriving from the cost incurred to replace a component
of such item will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be determined reliably.
Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it
meets the criteria for recognition above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is derecognised. Other expenditure that does not generate additional future economic benefits or
service potential, such as repairs and maintenance, is charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred.
Depreciation
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful economic
lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits.
Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not depreciated.
Equipment is depreciated evenly over the estimated life of the asset.

Medical equipment
Engineering plant and equipment
Furniture
Office and information technology equipment
Mainframe information technology installations
Set up costs in new buildings
Soft furnishings

Years
5 to 15
5 to 15
10
5
8
5
7

Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ ceases to be
depreciated upon the reclassification. Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated
until the asset is brought into use.
Revaluation gains and losses
Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent
that, they reverse a revaluation decrease that has previously been recognised in operating
expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating income.
Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an
available balance for the asset concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses.
Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as an item of ‘other comprehensive income’.
Impairments
In accordance with the FT ARM, impairments that are due to a loss of economic benefits or
service potential in the asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is
made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve of an equal amount
to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating expenses; and (ii) the balance in the
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revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before impairment.
Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ are
treated as revaluation gains.
De-recognition
Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ once all of the following criteria
are met:
•

the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
which are usual and customary for such sales;

•

the sale must be highly probable ie:
o

management are committed to a plan to sell the asset;

o

an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale;

o

the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of
classification as ‘Held for Sale’; and

o

the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely tha the plan will
be dropped or significant changes made to it.

Following the reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying
amount and their ‘fair value less costs to sell’. Depreciation ceases to be charged. Assets are
de-recognised when all material sale contract conditions have been met.
Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for
recognition as ‘Held for Sale’ and instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset’s
economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when scrapping or demolition occurs.
Donated, government granted and other grant funded assets
Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair
value on receipt. The donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor
has imposed a condition that the future economic benefits embodied in the grant are to be
consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the donation/grant is deferred
within liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition
has not yet been met.
The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as
other items of property, plant and equipment.
1.6

Intangible assets
Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of
being sold separately from the rest of the Trust’s business or which arise from contractual or
other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust and where the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.
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Software
Software which is integral to the operation of hardware e.g. an operating system, is capitalised
as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to
the operation of hardware e.g. application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.
Measurement
Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs
needed to create, produce and prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in
the manner intended by management.
Subsequently intangible assets are measured at fair value. Revaluation gains and losses and
impairments are treated in the same manner as for Property, Plant and Equipment.
Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair value
less costs to sell’.
Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful economic lives in a manner
consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits.
Intangible Assets – purchased software
1.7

Years
5

Research and Development
Expenditure on research is not capitalised and is therefore charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred.

1.8

Revenue Government Grants
Government grants are grants from Government bodies other than income from primary care
trusts or NHS trusts for the provision of services. Where a grant is used to fund revenue
expenditure it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income to match that expenditure.

1.9

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. This is considered to be a
reasonable approximation to current cost due to the high turnover of inventories.
Inventories are reviewed to enable identification of slow moving and obsolete items and for
condemnation, disposal and replacement of all unserviceable articles. Obsolete goods are
disposed of in line with the Standing Financial Instructions guidance on Disposals and
Condemnations, Insurance, Losses and Special Payments.

1.10

Financial instruments and financial liabilities
Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase or sale of
non-financial items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with the
Trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage requirements, are recognised when, and to the extent
which, performance occurs i.e. when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.
Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through
finance leases are recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for
leases described below.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Trust becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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De-recognition
All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets
have expired or the Trust has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership.
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Classification and Measurement
Financial assets are categorised as ‘Fair Value through Income and Expenditure’, Loans and
receivables.
Financial liabilities are classified as ‘Fair value through Income and Expenditure’ or as ‘Other
Financial liabilities’.
Financial assets and financial liabilities at ‘Fair Value through Income and Expenditure’
Financial assets and financial liabilities at ‘fair value through income and expenditure’ are
financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading. A financial asset or financial liability is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Derivatives which are embedded in other contracts but which are not ‘closely-related’ to those
contracts are separated-out from those contracts and measured in this category. Assets and
liabilities in this category are classified as current assets and current liabilities.
These financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, with
transaction costs expensed in the income and expenditure account. Subsequent movements in
the fair value are recognised as gains or losses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
which are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets.
The Trust’s loans and receivables comprise: cash and cash equivalents, NHS debtors, accrued
income and ‘other debtors’.
Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Other financial liabilities
All other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount of the financial liability.
They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after
the Statement of Financial Position date, which are classified as long-term liabilities.
Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest
method and charged to Finance Costs. Interest on financial liabilities taken out to finance
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property, plant and equipment or intangible assets is not capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets.
Determination of fair value
For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value, the carrying amounts are
determined from discounted cash flow analysis.
Impairment of financial assets
At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Trust assesses whether any financial assets,
other than those held at ‘fair value through income and expenditure’ are impaired. Financial
assets are impaired and impairment losses are recognised if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cashflows of the
asset.
1.11

Leases
Finance leases
Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the NHS
foundation trust, the asset is recorded as Property, Plant and Equipment and a corresponding
liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is the lower of the fair value of the
asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. The implicit interest rate is that which produces a constant periodic rate of
interest on the outstanding liability.
The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset
is accounted for as an item of property, plant and equipment.
The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to
achieve a constant rate of finance over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged
to Finance Costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The lease liability is derecognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Operating leases
Other leases are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to operating
expenses on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives
received are added to the lease rentals and charged to operating expenses over the life of the
lease.
Leases of land and buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building
component and the classification for each is assessed separately.

1.12

Provisions
The NHS foundation trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive
obligation of uncertain timing or amount; for which it is probable that there will be a future
outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount. The
amount included in the Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the resources
required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the
estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using HM Treasury’s discount rate of 2.2%
in real terms, except for early retirement provisions and injury benefit provisions which both use
the HM treasury’s pension discount rate of 2.8% (2010/11: 2.9%) in real terms.
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Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the NHS
foundation trust pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA, which, in return, settles all clinical
negligence claims. Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical
negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the NHS foundation trust. The total value of
clinical negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the NHS foundation trust is
disclosed at note 20 but is not recognised in the NHS foundation trust’s accounts.
Non-clinical risk pooling
The NHS foundation trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to
Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the trust pays an annual
contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and in return receives assistance with the costs of
claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any ‘excesses’ payable in respect of
particular claims are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises.
1.13

Contingencies
Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be
confirmed by one or more future events not wholly within the entity’s control) are not
recognised as assets, but are disclosed in note 27 where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.
•

1.14

Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in note 27, unless the
probability of a transfer of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are
defined as:
o

possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the entity’s control; or

o

present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that
a transfer of economic benefits will arise or for which the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Public dividend capital
Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of
assets over liabilities at the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS trust. HM Treasury
has determined that PDC is not a financial instrument within the meaning of IAS 32.
A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the NHS foundation trust, is payable as public
dividend capital dividend. The charge is calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently
3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the NHS foundation trust during the financial year.
Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities,
except for (i) donated assets (including lottery funded assets) (ii) net cash balances held with
the Government Banking Services (GBS), excluding cash balances held in GBS accounts that
relate to a short-term working capital facility, and (iii) any PDC Dividend balance receivable or
payable. In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health (as issuer
of PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as
set out in the ‘pre-audit’ version of the annual accounts. The dividend thus calculated is not
revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result of the audit of the annual
accounts

1.15

Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the NHS foundation trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general,
output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is
charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of
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fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated
net of VAT.
1.16

Corporation Tax
The NHS Foundation Trust does not have a corporation tax liability for the year 2011/12. Tax
may be payable on activities as described below:

1.17

•

the activity is not related to the provision of core healthcare as defined under Section
14(1) of the HSCA. Private healthcare falls under this legislation and is not therefore
taxable;

•

the activity is commercial in nature and competes with the private sector. In house
trading activities are normally ancillary to the core healthcare objectives and are
therefore not subject to tax;

•

the activity must have annual profits of over £50,000.

Foreign exchange
The functional and presentational currencies of the Trust are sterling.
A transaction which is denominated in a foreign currency is translated into the functional
currency at the spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction.

1.18

Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised
in the accounts since the NHS foundation trust has no beneficial interest in them. However,
they are disclosed in a separate note to the accounts in accordance with the requirements of
HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual.

1.19

Losses and special payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it
agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that
ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared
with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the
way that individual cases are handled. Losses and special payments are charged to the
relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would
have been made good through insurance cover had NHS Trusts not been bearing their own
risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure).
However the losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and
compensations register which reports on an accruals basis with the exception of provisions for
future losses.

1.20

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
International accounting standard IAS1 requires estimates, assumptions and judgements to be
continually evaluated and to be based on historical experience and other factors including
expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The purpose of evaluation is to consider
whether there may be a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying value of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, compared to the carrying value in these
accounts. The following significant assumptions and areas of estimation and judgement have
been considered in preparing these financial statements.
Value of land, buildings and dwellings £43.9 million: This is the most significant estimate in the
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accounts and is based on the professional judgement of the Trust’s independent valuer with
extensive knowledge of the physical estate and market factors. The value does not take into
account potential future changes in market value which cannot be predicted with any certainty.
Income from patient care activities: Income for an inpatient stay can start to be recognised from
the day of admission, but cannot be precisely calculated until after the patient is discharged.
For patients occupying a bed at the 2011/12 financial year end, the estimated value of partially
completed spells is £529,822 (2010/11 £593,404).
Untaken annual leave: salary costs include a £305,421 estimate for the annual leave earned
but not taken by employees at 31 March 2012, to the extent that staff are permitted to carry
leave forward to the next financial year. (2010/11 £382,943)
Provisions: Assumptions around the timing of the cashflows relating to provisions are based
upon information from the NHS Pensions Agency and expert opinion within the Trust and from
the external advisors regarding when legal issues may be settled.
1.21

Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The following accounting standards, amendments and interpretations have been issued by the
IASB and IFRIC but are not yet required to be adopted:
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
−

Disclosures – amendment

−

Transfers of financial assets

Effective date of 2012/13
but not yet adopted by the
EU.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
−

Financial Assets

−

Financial Liabilities

Uncertain. Not likely to be
adopted by the EU until the
IASB has finished the rest of
its financial instruments
project.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

Effective date of 2013/14
but not yet adopted by the
EU.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

Effective date of 2013/14
but not yet adopted by the
EU.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Effective date of 2013/14
but not yet adopted by the
EU.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Effective date of 2013/14
but not yet adopted by the
EU.

IAS 12 Income Taxes amendment

Effective date of 2012/13
but not yet adopted by the
EU.

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements, on other
comprehensive income (OCI)

Effective date of 2013/14
but not yet adopted by the
EU.
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IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

Effective date of 2013/14
but not yet adopted by the
EU.

IAS 28 Associates and joint ventures

Effective date of 2013/14
but not yet adopted by the
EU.

The Trust has considered the above new standards, interpretations and amendments to
published standards that are not yet effective and concluded that they are either not relevant to
the Trust or that they would not have a significant impact on the Trust’s financial statements,
apart from some additional disclosures.
1.22

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations issued that have been adopted
early
The Trust has not early adopted any new accounting standards, amendments or
interpretations.

1.23

Prior period adjustment
This reflects a change in accounting policy (as required by the Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual), as previously donated assets were credited to a donated asset reserve and
assets funded by lottery grant were held as deferred income. The comparative figures for the
period to 31 March 2011 have therefore been restated. The effect of the restatement was to
remove the donated asset reserve of £1,723,000 and the deferred income liability of £238,000
as at 31 March 2011. These transactions increased the revaluation reserve by £362,000 and
the Income and Expenditure reserve by £1,599,000. The income and expenditure account for
the twelve month period ended 31 March 2011 was also restated to recognise additional
income of £105,000.
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2

Segmental Analysis
At the current time the Trust is managing and reporting its performance internally on the
segments shown below and is not fully recharging overhead and indirect costs. The assets of
the Trust are not reported on a segmental basis.
The net surplus shown in the segmental analysis reconciles to the surplus for the year in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Segmental Analysis for the year ending 31 March 2012
Medicine

Income
NHS clinical income
Non NHS clinical income
Total other income
Total Income
Expenses
Pay expenditure
Non pay expenditure
Total Expenditure
Loss on disposal of asset
Total depreciation
PDC dividend
Total interest receivable
Impairment
Finance expense unwinding of discount on
provisions
Net surplus / (Deficit)

Surgical Family Health
& Clinical
Support

Corporate

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

34,181
19
1,623
35,823

37,718
10
413
38,141

22,431
2,580
564
25,575

499
586
8,399
9,484

94,829
3,195
10,999
109,023

(19,018)
(5,528)
(24,546)

(22,975)
(7,179)
(30,154)

(17,874)
(7,778)
(25,652)

(11,672)
(10,483)
(22,155)

(71,539)
(30,968)
(102,507)

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

(30)
(3,456)
(1,681)
66
(600)

(30)
(3,456)
(1,681)
66
(600)

0

0

0

(18)

(18)

11,277

7,987

(77)

(18,390)

797
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Segmental Analysis for the year ending 31 March 2011 (restated)
Medicine

Income
NHS clinical income
Non NHS clinical income
Total other income
Total Income
Expenses
Pay expenditure
Non pay expenditure
Total Expenditure
Loss on disposal of asset
Total depreciation
PDC dividend
Total interest receivable
Impairment
Finance expense unwinding of discount on
provisions
Net surplus / (Deficit)

Surgical Family Health
& Clinical
Support

Corporate

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

31,341
28
919
32,288

39,356
15
204
39,575

22,375
2,464
1,003
25,842

0
615
8,242
8,857

93,072
3,122
10,368
106,562

(18,586)
(4,814)
(23,400)

(23,605)
(6,920)
(30,525)

(17,704)
(7,300)
(25,004)

(12,380)
(9,525)
(21,905)

(72,275)
(28,559)
(100,834)

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

(2)
(3,226)
(1,644)
70
(1,580)

(2)
(3,226)
(1,644)
70
(1,580)

0

0

0

(19)

(19)

8,888

9,050

838

(19,449)

(673)
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3

Operating Income from continuing operations
2011/12

Elective income
Non-elective income
Outpatient income
A & E income
Other NHS Clinical income
Private patient income
Other non protected clinical income
Total income from activities
Other operating income
Research & development
Education & training
Charitable & other contributions to expenditure
Non patient care services to other bodies
Other
Reversal of impairments on property, plant & equipment
Total other operating income
Total operating income

£'000
20,613
33,533
15,829
4,231
20,623
2,570
626
98,025

2010/11
restated
£'000
21,599
34,170
15,673
3,679
17,950
2,464
659
96,194

1,037
3,358
598
2,721
3,320
18
11,052

802
4,312
105
1,807
3,342
76
10,444

109,077

106,638

NHS Injury Scheme income is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 10.5% to reflect
expected rates of collection.
The Terms of Authorisation set out the mandatory goods and services that the Trust is required
to provide (protected services).

Income from Mandatory Services
Income from Non Mandatory Services
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2010/11
£'000

95,455
2,570
98,025

93,730
2,464
96,194
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4

Private Patient Income

Private patient income
Total patient related income
Proportion (as a percentage)

2011/12
£'000

2010/11
£'000

Base Year
2002/03
£'000

2,570
98,025
2.62%

2,464
96,194
2.56%

1,964
52,876
3.71%

Section 44 of the 2006 Act requires that the proportion of patient income to the total patient
related income of NHS Foundation Trusts should not exceed its proportion whilst the body was
an NHS Trust in 2002/03 or the base year.

5

Analysis of Other Operating Income: Other
Included within other income is income relating to car parking, catering, staff recharges,
estates recharges and additional other income.
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6

Operating Expenses of continuing operations

6.1

Operating expenses comprise:

2011/12

Services from NHS Foundation Trusts
Services from NHS Trusts
Services from PCTs
Services from other NHS bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies
Executive Directors' costs
Non-Executive Directors' costs
Staff costs
Drug costs
Supplies and services (excluding drug costs)
- clinical
- general
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Increase in bad debt provision
Depreciation and amortisation
Property, plant & equipment impairments
Audit fees - statutory audit
Audit fees - other assurance services
Other auditors remuneration - other services
Clinical Negligence
Loss on disposal of property plant & equipment
Consultancy costs
Training
Losses, ex gratia & special payments
Other

£'000
3,761
123
43
593
1
843
108
69,017
7,620

2010/11
restated
£'000
3,985
291
191
642
13
846
101
69,261
6,919

9,032
1,966
1,384
594
3,750
161
3,454
618
60
12
22
2,146
30
421
374
43
472
106,648

8,594
1,814
1,166
454
3,639
162
3,226
1,656
60
12
8
1,975
2
61
287
30
323
105,718

The total employer’s pension contributions are disclosed in note 9.1.
6.2

Operating leases

6.2.1

Operating lease expenses include:

Other operating lease rentals
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2011/12
£'000

2010/11
£'000

44

65

44

65
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7

Arrangements containing an operating lease:

Other
leases

Other
leases

2011/12
£000

2010/11
£000

25
15
0

36
56
0

40

92

Future minimum lease payments due

Operating leases which expire
Within 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years
After 5 years

8

Limitation on auditor’s liability
The limitation on the auditor’s liability is £1,000,000.

9

Staff Costs and Numbers

9.1

Staff Costs

Salaries and Wages
Social security costs
Employer contributions to NHSPA
Agency and contract staff
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2011/12
£'000

2010/11
£'000

56,933
4,349
6,557
2,021

56,977
4,216
6,384
2,530

69,860

70,107
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9.2

Average number of persons employed

2011/12

Medical and Dental
Administration and Estates
Healthcare Assistants & other
support staff
Nursing, midwifery & health visiting
staff
Scientific, theraputic and technical
staff
Other

9.3

2010/11

Permanently
Employed
Number

Other
Number

Total
Number

Total Number

211
408

5
3

216
411

220
410

356

20

376

372

526

6

532

529

175
0

2
0

177
0

174
0

1,676

36

1,712

1,705

Employee benefits
Benefits in kind relating to lease cars totalled £10,931 in the year (2010/11 £998).

9.4

NHS Pension Scheme
The NHS Pensions Scheme is subject to a full valuation every four years by the Government
Actuary. The latest published valuation relates to the period 1 April 1999 to 31 March 2004
which was published in December 2007 and is available on the NHS pensions Agency website.
This valuation determined that the national deficit of the scheme was £3.3 billion. The
conclusion of the valuation was that the scheme continues to operate on a sound financial
basis.
Employer contribution rates are reviewed every four years following the scheme valuation, on
advice from the actuary. At the last valuation it was recommended that employer contributions
rates should continue at 14% of pensionable pay. Employees’ pay contributions will be on a
tiered scale from 5% to 8.5% of their pensionable pay.

9.5

Retirements due to ill-health
During 2011/12 there were 3 early retirements from the Trust agreed on the grounds of illhealth. The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be
£196,807. These costs will be borne by the NHS Pensions Agency. In 2010/11 there were 2
early retirements on the grounds of ill-health, amounting to estimated £101,223 additional
pension liabilities.

9.6

Staff Exit Packages
No staff exit packages were paid in 2011/12 (none were paid in 2010/11).

Page 35

YEOVIL DISTRICT HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST – ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2011/12

10

Finance Income

2011/12
£'000

2010/11
£'000

66

70

66

70

2011/12
Number

2011/12
£000

2010/11
Number

2010/11
£000

32,587

28,311

31,616

30,716

31,982

27,802

29,991

26,988

98%

98%

95%

88%

1,521

9,986

1,704

12,812

1,493

9,861

1,617

12,440

98%

99%

95%

97%

Interest received

11

Better Payment Policy Code

11.1

Better Payment Practice Code – measure of compliance

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in
year
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid
within target
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices
paid within target

Total NHS trade invoices paid in year
Total NHS trade invoices paid within
target
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid
within target

11.2

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
There were no amounts included within interest payable arising from claims made by
businesses under this legislation.

12

Profit / (Loss) on Disposal of Fixed Assets

Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

2011/12
£'000

2010/11
£'000

(30)
(30)

(2)
(2)

The disposals in 2011/12 and 2010/11 were in respect of non protected assets.
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13

Losses and Special Payments
2011/12
Number

2011/12
Value
£000

2010/11
Number

2010/11
Value
£000

807
16
823

193
24
217

385
19
404

18
12
30

Losses
Special payments
Total losses and special payments

There were no case payments that exceeded £100,000.
These amounts are reported on an accruals basis, excluding provisions for future losses.
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14

Intangible assets

14.1

Intangible assets comprise the following elements:

2011/12

2010/11

Software Assets under
licence construction

Cost or valuation at 1 April
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Reclassifications
Revaluation
Disposals
At 31 March
Depreciation at 1 April
Provided during the year
Revaluation
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March
Net book value
- Purchased at 1 April
- Donated at 1 April

- Purchased at 31 March
- Donated at 31 March
Total at 31 March

Total

Software Assets under
licence construction

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

68
166
8
0
0
0
242

0
70
0
0
0
0
70

68
236
8
0
0
0
312

45
23
0
0
0
0
68

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

45
23
0
0
0
0
68

10
16
0
0
26

0
0
0
0
0

10
16
0
0
26

0
10
0
0
10

0
0
0
0
0

0
10
0
0
10

22
36
58

0
0
0

22
36
58

0
45
45

0
0
0

0
45
45

182
34
216

70
0
70

252
34
286

22
36
58

0
0
0

22
36
58
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15

Property, plant and equipment

15.1

Property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2012 comprise the following elements:
Freehold Land

Freehold
buildings
excluding
dwellings

Plant and
machinery

Transport
equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

7,306
0
0
0
(60)
0
0
0
7,246

38,381
1,311
389
302
(126)
(1,079)
(100)
0
39,078

1,275
0
0
0
0
(14)
(3)
0
1,258

618
830
110
(281)
0
0
0
0
1,277

16,704
1,020
75
1
0
0
0
(2,083)
15,717

21
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
21

1,979
109
0
3
(2)
0
0
(52)
2,037

378
125
15
(25)
0
0
0
(53)
440

66,662
3,395
589
0
(188)
(1,093)
(103)
(2,188)
67,074

Depreciation at 1 April 2011
Provided during the year
Impairments
Reversal of impairments
Reclassifications
Reclassified as held for sale
Revaluation surpluses
Disposals

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,934
1,946
615
(7)
31
(4)
(937)
0

31
67
3
(11)
0
0
(22)
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

10,849
1,170
0
0
0
0
0
(2,054)

19
1
0
0
0
0
0
0

959
222
0
0
0
0
0
(52)

223
32
0
0
(31)
0
0
(51)

14,015
3,438
618
(18)
0
(4)
(959)
(2,157)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2012

0

3,578

68

0

9,965

20

1,129

173

14,933

Net book value
- Purchased at 1 April 2011
- Finance Leases at 1 April 2011
- Donated at 1 April 2011
Total at 1 April 2011

7,306
0
0
7,306

35,273
0
1,174
36,447

1,244
0
0
1,244

618
0
0
618

5,407
1
447
5,855

2
0
0
2

1,018
0
2
1,020

121
0
34
155

50,989
1
1,657
52,647

- Purchased at 31 March 2012
- Finance Leases at 31 March 2012
- Donated at 31 March 2012
Total at 31 March 2012

7,246
0
0
7,246

33,893
0
1,607
35,500

1,190
0
0
1,190

1,167
0
110
1,277

5,311
0
441
5,752

1
0
0
1

908
0
0
908

225
0
42
267

49,941
0
2,200
52,141

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2011
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Reclassifications
Reclassified as held for sale
Impairments charged to revaluation reserve
Revaluation
Disposals
At 31 March 2012

Freehold Assets under
dwellings construction &
payments on
account
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15.2

Analysis of property, plant and equipment
Freehold Land

Freehold
buildings
excluding
dwellings

6,120
1,126
7,246

34,460
1,040
35,500

Net book value
Protected assets at 31 March 2012
Unprotected assets as 31 March 2012
Total at 31 March 2012

15.3

Freehold Assets under
dwellings construction &
payments on
account

0
1,190
1,190

0
1,277
1,277

Plant and
machinery

Transport
equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total

0
5,752
5,752

0
1
1

0
908
908

0
267
267

40,580
11,561
52,141

Impairment of assets – Property, Plant and Equipment
The new Combined Heat and Power plant was brought into use during 2011/12 and the refurbishment of the Macmillan unit was completed. A valuation of
these works was carried out in December 2011. A review was also carried out of the overall value of the assets of the Trust as at 31 March 2012. An
impairment of £618,000 was charged to the Statement of Comprehensive income comprising of £286,000 in respect the Combined Heat and Power and
the Macmillan unit works and £332,000 in respect of the review of the overall valuation of the Trust’s assets. The remainder of the impairment was
charged to the revaluation reserve.
The review also resulted in a reversal of a previous impairment totalling £18,000 and this was credited to the Statement of Comprehensive income.

15.4

Non current assets held for sale
Land and buildings known as Preston Road Clinic have been classified as held for sale during the year at the net book value of £184,000.
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15.5

Property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2011 comprise the following elements:
Freehold Land

Freehold
buildings
excluding
dwellings

Plant and
machinery

Transport
equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

7,306
0
0
0
0
0
0
7,306

29,425
3,434
31
4,018
(40)
1,513
0
38,381

1,282
51
0
3
(58)
(3)
0
1,275

4,703
405
0
(4,490)
0
0
0
618

15,879
1,394
60
448
0
0
(1,077)
16,704

21
0
0
0
0
0
0
21

1,865
118
2
21
0
0
(27)
1,979

319
63
12
0
0
0
(16)
378

60,800
5,465
105
0
(98)
1,510
(1,120)
66,662

Depreciation at 1 April 2010
Provided during the year
Impairments
Revaluation surpluses
Disposals

0
0
0
0
0

18
1,675
1,569
(1,328)
0

2
59
11
(41)
0

0
0
0
0
0

10,658
1,268
0
0
(1,077)

18
1
0
0
0

792
194
0
0
(27)

218
19
0
0
(14)

11,706
3,216
1,580
(1,369)
(1,118)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2011

0

1,934

31

0

10,849

19

959

223

14,015

Net book value
- Purchased at 1 April 2010
- Finance Leases at 1 April 2010
- Donated at 1 April 2010
Total at 1 April 2010

7,306
0
0
7,306

28,319
0
1,088
29,407

1,280
0
0
1,280

4,690
0
13
4,703

4,663
7
551
5,221

3
0
0
3

1,073
0
0
1,073

75
0
26
101

47,409
7
1,678
49,094

- Purchased at 31 March 2011
- Finance Leases at 31 March 2011
- Donated at 31 March 2011
Total at 31 March 2011

7,306
0
0
7,306

35,273
0
1,174
36,447

1,244
0
0
1,244

618
0
0
618

5,377
1
477
5,855

2
0
0
2

1,018
0
2
1,020

121
0
34
155

50,959
1
1,687
52,647

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2010
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Reclassifications
Impairments charged to revaluation reserve
Revaluation
Disposals
At 31 March 2011

Freehold Assets under
dwellings construction &
payments on
account
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15.6

Analysis of property, plant and equipment

Net book value
Protected assets at 31 March 2011
Unprotected assets as 31 March 2011
Total at 31 March 2011

Freehold Land

Freehold
buildings
excluding
dwellings

6,120
1,186
7,306

35,719
728
36,447

Freehold Assets under
dwellings construction &
payments on
account

0
1,244
1,244
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0
618
618

Plant and
machinery

Transport
equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total

0
5,855
5,855

0
2
2

0
1,020
1,020

0
155
155

41,839
10,808
52,647
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16

Assets held under finance leases

16.1

Assets held under finance leases comprise the following elements:
2011/12

2010/11

Plant and
machinery

Total

Plant and
machinery

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

Cost or valuation at 1 April
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Reclassifications
Revaluation
Disposals
At 31 March

23
0
0
0
0
0
23

23
0
0
0
0
0
23

23
0
0
0
0
0
23

23
0
0
0
0
0
23

Depreciation at 1 April
Provided during the year
Revaluation
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March

22
1
0
0
23

22
1
0
0
23

21
1
0
0
22

21
1
0
0
22

Net book value
- Purchased at 1 April
- Finance Leases at 1 April
- Donated at 1 April
Total at 1 April

0
0
0
1

0
0
0
0

0
2
0
2

0
2
0
2

- Purchased at 31 March
- Finance Leases at 31 March
- Donated at 31 March
Total at 31 March

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
1
0
1

0
1
0
1
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17

Inventories

Materials and consumables

31 March 2012
£'000

31 March 2011
£'000

1,629

1,645

1,629

1,645

18

Trade and other receivables

18.1

Trade and other receivables at the statement of financial position date are made up of:

Amounts falling due within one year:
NHS receivables
Provision for impaired receivables
Prepayments
Accrued income
PDC dividend receivable
Other receivables

Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Provision for impaired receivables
Accrued income
Other receivables

Total receivables

18.2

31 Mar 2012

31 Mar 2011

£'000
611
(113)
572
1,313
23
1,174
3,580

£'000
1,578
(314)
504
212
0
1,459
3,439

(75)
170
614
709

(108)
92
701
685

4,289

4,124

Provision for the impairment of receivables
31 March 2012
£'000
422
245
(395)
(84)
188

At 1 April
Increase in provision
Amounts utilised
Unused amounts reversed
At 31 March
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31 March 2011
£'000
351
182
(91)
(20)
422
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18.3

Analysis of impaired receivables

Ageing of impaired receivables
0 - 30 days
30 - 60 days
60 - 90 days
90 - 180 days
over 180 days

Ageing of non-impaired receivables past their due date
0 - 30 days
30 - 60 days
60 - 90 days
90 - 180 days
over 180 days

31 March 2012
£'000

31 March 2011
£'000

0
0
0
16
172
188

0
0
5
37
380
422

700
46
51
61
18
876

814
54
59
81
66
1,074

19

Trade and other payables

19.1

Trade and other payables at the statement of financial position date are made up of;

Amounts falling due within one year:
Receipts on account
NHS payables
Trade payables - capital
Other trade payables
Other payables
Accruals
PDC payable
Total payables

31 March 2012
£'000

31 March 2011
£'000

0
933
701
1,400
2,231
2,376
0
7,641

13
1,729
413
1,572
2,173
1,107
47
7,054

NHS trade payables include £838,000 in respect of outstanding pensions contributions as at 31
March 2012 (2010/11 £818,000).
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20

Provisions for Liabilities and Charges

Pensions
relating to
other staff
£000

Legal
Claims

Total

£000

£000

256
13
(25)
0
4
248

518
153
(62)
(18)
13
604

774
166
(87)
(18)
17
852

25
100
123
248

61
180
363
604

86
280
486
852

At 1 April 2011
Arising during the year
Utilised during the year
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount
At 31 March 2012
Expected timing of cashflows:
Within 1 year
1 - 5 years
over 5 years

£23,116,744 is included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority at 31 March 2012 in
respect of clinical negligence liabilities of the Trust. (£25,867,272 for 2010/11)
20.1

Pensions relating to other staff
The cost of pensions relating to early retirements is calculated using The NHS Pension Agency
capitalisation tables for the NHS Pension Scheme to determine the full liability for each
employee.

20.2

Legal Claims
The provision is based on information provided by the NHS Litigation Authority and refers to
non clinical claims against the Trust.

20.3

Estimation uncertainty
Amounts recorded under provisions for Pensions relating to other staff and Legal Claims
include an element of uncertainty as the provision has been calculated using the English Life
Expectancy statistics to estimate the length of time the liability can reasonably be expected to
remain.
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21

Borrowings
31 March 2012
£'000

31 March 2011
£'000

Current
Other loans
Total current borrowings

128
128

128
128

Non-current
Other loans
Total non-current borrowings

191
191

319
319

22

Prudential Borrowing Limit
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is required to comply and remain within a
prudential borrowing limit. This is made up of two elements:
•

the maximum cumulative amount of long term borrowing. This is set by reference to
the four ratio tests set out in the Prudential Borrowing Code for NHS Foundation
Trusts. The financial risk rating set under Monitor’s Compliance Framework determines
one of the ratios and therefore can impact on the long term borrowing limit: and

•

the amount of any working capital facility approved by Monitor.

Further information on the Prudential Borrowing Code for NHS foundation trusts and
Compliance Framework can be found on the website of Monitor, the Independent Regulator of
Foundation Trusts.

Actual Ratios
2011/12

Approved PBL
ratios 2011/12

Actual Ratios
2010/11

Approved PBL
ratios 2010/11

3.9

1x

3.6

1x

Minimum interest cover

N/A*

3x

N/A*

3x

Minimum debt service cover

51.2

2x

46.7

2x

0.12%

<2.5%

0.12%

<2.5%

Financial Ratio
Minimum dividend cover

Minimum debt service to revenue

*The Trust's borrowing is interest free, therefore the above ratio could not be calculated

The Trust has a prudential borrowing limit of £19,800,000 in 2011/12 (£20,800,000 in 2010/11).

The Trust has £5,000,000 of approved working capital facility at 31 March 2012 (£6,500,000 in
2010/11). The Trust had not drawn down any of its working capital facility during the year to 31
March 2012 or during the year to 31 March 2011.
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23

Reconciliation of Operating Surplus to Net Cashflow from Operating Activities

Total operating surplus
Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment
Reversal of impairments
Decrease in inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in receivables
Increase / (Decrease) in payables
Decrease in other liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions
Other movements in operating cashflows
Net cash inflow from operating activities

24

2011/12
£000

2010/11
£000

2,429
3,454
618
(18)
16
(154)
341
0
78
30
6,794

920
3,226
1,656
(76)
133
177
(1735)
(63)
(107)
(38)
4,093

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds
2011/12
£000

2010/11
£000

1,072

(3,022)

Opening net funds

5,046

8,068

Closing net funds

6,118

5,046

Increase / (Decrease) in cash in the year
Change in funds resulting from cashflows

25

Analysis of Changes in net funds

Cash at Bank and in hand
Government Banking Service cash at bank
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At 1 April
2011
£000

Cash
Changes
in year
£000

At 31
March
2012
£000

14
5,032

283
789

297
5,821

5,046

1,072

6,118
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26

Capital Commitments
There was £669,000 of Capital Commitments at the Balance Sheet date (2010/11 £542,000).
Radiology Equipment £434,000
Works to replace a CT Scanner are underway with the equipment arriving in April 2012.
Electrical Infrastructure £61,000
Major upgrade works to the electrical infrastructure have commenced.
Other capital projects £174,000
Work has commenced on a number of projects with costs committed in areas such as the
women’s hospital, health and safety projects and IT and medical equipment upgrades.

27

Contingent Assets and Liabilities
There were no contingent assets and no contingent liabilities for the year ended 31 March
2012 or for the year ended 31 March 2011.

28

Movements in Public Dividend Capital

Public dividend capital at 1 April
New public dividend capital received
Public dividend capital at 31 March
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2011/12
£000

2010/11
£000

40,595
30
40,625

40,595
0
40,595
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29

Related party transactions
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is a body corporate established by the issue of a
licence of authorisation from Monitor.
The Trust is under the common control of the Board of Directors. During the year none of the
Board members or members of the key management staff or parties related to them, has
undertaken any material transactions with Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.
During the year ended 31 March 2012, Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has had
a significant number of material transactions with other entities for which the Department of
Health is regarded as the parent department. These entities are listed below:

Dorset University Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
Somerset Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
Taunton and Somerset NHS Foundation Trust
University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust
South West Strategic Health Authority
Bristol PCT
Dorset PCT
Somerset PCT
NHS Litigation Authority

Income
£000

Expenditure
£000

Receivables
£000

Payables
£000

809
1,145
461
777
3,195
869
13,369
80,267
0

214
467
3,092
101
0
3
27
35
2,255

7
157
178
8
0
64
91
1,072
25

0
4
660
32
0
3
8
17
0

In addition the Trust has entered into transactions with other Government Departments and
other central and local Government bodies.
The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from a number of charitable funds.
Some of the Trustees of these charitable funds are also members of the Board of the NHS
Foundation Trust. Full audited accounts are prepared for the Funds held on Trust.
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30

Director’s remuneration
A full remuneration report can be found in the Annual Report.

Director's remuneration
Employers contributions to the pension scheme

£'000
897
112
1,009

Total number of directors to whom benefits are accruing under:
- Money purchase schemes
- Defined benefit schemes

31

0
8

Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel compensation in total for short term benefits
Key management personnel compensation in total for post employment benefits

£'000
938
112
1,050

32

Public Private Partnership Transactions
The Trust had no Public Private Partnership transactions in the year ended 31 March 2012 (or
in the year ended 31 March 2011).

33

Financial Instruments
IAS 32 (Financial Instruments, Presentation), IAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement) and IFRS 7 (Financial Instruments, Disclosure) require disclosure of the role
that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks an entity
faces in undertaking its activities. The main source of income for the Trust is under contracts
from commissioners in respect of healthcare services. Due to the way that the Commissioners
are financed, the Foundation Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by
business entities.
Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would
be typical of the listed companies to which IFRS 7 mainly applies. Financial assets and
liabilities are generated by day to day operational activities rather than being held to change
the risks facing the NHS Foundation Trust in undertaking its activities.

33.1

Financial Risk Management
The Trust’s financial risk management operations are carried out by the Trust’s Treasury
Function, within the parameters formally defined within the Treasury Management Guidance,
agreed by the Trust Audit Committee. Trust treasury activity is routinely reported and is subject
to review by internal and external auditors.
The Trust’s financial instruments comprise of cash and liquid resources and various items such
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as trade debtors and creditors that arise directly from its operations. The Trust does not
undertake speculative treasury transactions.
33.2

Liquidity Risk
The NHS Foundation Trust’s net operating costs are incurred under contracts with
commissioners, which are financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. Yeovil
District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risk.

33.3

Interest Rate Risk
100% of the Trust’s financial assets and 100% of its financial liabilities carry nil or fixed rates of
interest. The Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant interest rate risk.

33.4

Foreign Currency Risk
The Trust has negligible foreign currency income or expenditure.

33.5

Credit Risk
The majority of the Trust’s income comes from Government bodies or other NHS organisation
under contractual arrangements meaning that the Trust is not exposed to high levels of credit
risk.
Other income is subject to credit control procedures which are regularly reviewed by
management. Outstanding debtors are referred to a credit collection agency once the Trust
has exhausted all other methods of collection.

33.6

Price Risk
The Trust invests its surplus cash in money market funds and deposits, therefore it is not
subject to market price risk.

33.7

Cashflow Risk
Cash is invested in accordance with approved procedures. Cashflows are monitored and
monthly forecasts are produced to ensure commitments are met.

33.8

Financial Assets

Carrying Amount
31 March 2012

Fair Value
31 March
2012

Carrying Amount
31 March 2011

Fair Value
31 March
2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

611
1,483
1,623
6,118
9,835

611
1,483
1,623
6,118
9,835

1,674
212
1,734
5,046
8,666

1,674
212
1,734
5,046
8,666

NHS Debtors (net of provisions for irrecoverable
debts)
Accrued income
Other debtors
Cash at bank and in hand
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33.9

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings
NHS Creditors
Other creditors
Accruals
Provisions

Carrying
Amount
31 March 2012

Fair Value
31 March 2012

Carrying Amount
31 March 2011

Fair Value
31 March 2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

319
1,034
5,029
1,563
852
8,797

319
1,034
5,029
1,563
852
8,797

447
1,840
4,094
1,107
774
8,262

447
1,840
4,094
1,107
774
8,262

Fair value is not significantly different from book value since, in the calculation of book value,
the expected cashflows have been discounted by the Treasury discount rate of 2.2% in real
terms.

34

Third Party Assets
The Trust held £2,560 cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2012 which relates to monies
held by the Foundation Trust on behalf of patients.
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